
 

 

COMMISSION 

MEETING 
 

January 17, 2018 

 

9:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Montgomery Regional Office 

8787 Georgia Avenue 

Silver Spring, Maryland 20910 





 

 

ITEM 1 

 

MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING 

Wednesday, January 17, 2018   

Montgomery Regional Office 

9:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. 
                         ACTION 

                    Motion    Second 

1. Approval of Commission Agenda (9:30)                                                                (+*) Page  1 __________ 

 

2. Vote   

 a)  Commission Chair   (*)     __________ 

 b)  Commission Vice-Chair  (*)     __________ 

 

3. Approval of Commission Minutes   

 Open Session – December 20, 2017   (+*) Page  3 __________ 

   

4. General Announcements (9:30) 

a)    Prince George’s Department of Parks and Recreation Black History Month 

 Opening Reception (Sunday, January 28, 2018, 2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.   

 Harmony Hall Regional Center in Fort Washington, MD) 

  

b) M-NCPPC Women’s History Month Event hosted by the Diversity Council 

 (Friday, March 30, 2018, 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. Laurel-Beltsville 

  Senior Center) 
 

5. Committee Minutes/Board Reports (For Information Only): (9:40) 

 a) Executive Committee Meeting – Open Session – January 8, 2018  (+) Page   7  

 b) 115 Trust (OPEB) Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – September 20, 2017 (+) Page   11 

       c)     Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes     (+)         Page   13 

         December 5, 2017 

  

6. Action and Presentation Items (9:45) 

 a) Resolution #17-37 Adoption of East Riverdale-Beacon Heights Sector Plan      (+*)       Page  19 

              (D. Sims) 

       b)    Resolution#18-01 Adoption of the White Flint 2 Sector Plan (N. Sturgeon)       (+*)       Page  53 

 c)    Resolution #18-02 Adoption of the Grovesnor-Strathmore Area Minor              (+*)       Page  75 

  Master Plan (N. Sturgeon) 

       d)    Diversity Council 2017 End-of-Year Report and 

  Certificates of Appreciation and Photo Op (Barney/Gordon/Feeley)      (+)  Page  85 

        e)   FY2018 2% Savings Request from Montgomery County Government     (LD) 

  f) Administrative Practice 5-70A – Financial Disclosure (Bennett/Beckham)      (+*)      Page  97 

  g) ERP Upgrade Project Briefing (Chilet/Dixon)      (+)  Page 123  

  

7. Officers’ Reports  

 a) Executive Director’s Report (For Information Only) 

  Employee Evaluations Not Completed by Due Date (December 2017)   (+) Page 133 

 

 b) Secretary Treasurer (For Information Only) 

  Investment Report (November 2017)  (+) Page 135  

 

 c) General Counsel    

  1)  Litigation Report (For Information Only)                          (+)         Page 141   

  2)  Legislative Update 

 

8.  Closed Session – Collective Bargaining (Barney) 

Pursuant to Section 3-305(b)(7) and (b)(9) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, a closed 

session is proposed to consult with counsel to obtain legal advice, and to conduct collective  

bargaining negotiations or consider matters that relate to the negotiations. 

 

(+) Attachment               (++) Commissioners Only            (*) Vote           (H) Handout          (LD) Late Delivery     



2

0123456789



ITEM 3

3

0123456789



4

0123456789



5

0123456789



6

0123456789



ITEM 5a

7

0123456789



8

0123456789



9

0123456789



10

0123456789



ITEM 5b

11

0123456789



12

0123456789



EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

REGULAR BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

MINUTES 

Tuesday, November 7, 2017; 10:00 A.M. 

ERS/Merit Board Conference Room 

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees convened in the ERS/Merit Board Conference Room 

on Tuesday, November 7, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. Voting members present were: Khalid Afzal, Patricia 

Barney, CPA, Howard Brown, Gerald R. Cichy, Pamela F. Gogol, Dr. Alicia Hart, Amy Millar, Sheila 

Morgan-Johnson, Barbara Walsh and Joe Zimmerman, CPA. Elizabeth M. Hewlett was absent. 

ERS staff present were: Andrea L. Rose, Administrator; Heather D. Brown, Senior Administrative 

Specialist; Sheila S. Joynes, Accounting Manager; Eleanor Dagirmanjian, Retirement Benefits Analyst; 

Lisa Butler, Senior Retirement Benefits Analyst; Antonia Lanier, Member Relations Manager; and, Ann 

McCosby, Systems Manager. 

Others present included: M-NCPPC Staff- John Kroll, Corporate Budget Manager and Anju Bennett, 

Chief of Corporate Policy & Management Operations and Wilshire Associates - Bradley A. Baker, Vice 

President (via conference call). 

Presentations by Boomershine Consulting Group- David S. Boomershine, Senior Consulting Actuary 

and President; and, M-NCPPC Legal Department - LaTonya Reynolds, Senior Counsel. 

In the absence of the Chairman, VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY opened the meeting. 

1. CONSENT AGENDA

The following items are to be approved or accepted by vote on one motion unless a Board

member requests separate consideration:

A. Approval of the November 7, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda

B. Minutes of Regular Meeting, September 5, 2017

C. Disbursements Granted Reports - August and September 2017

The November 7, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda was revised to include Section 3-305(b)(7) 

to consult with legal counsel to Item 7 Closed Session. 

MS. BARNEY made a motion, seconded by MS. WALSH to approve the Consent Agenda which 

includes the revision to the November 7, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda. The motion 

PASSED unanimously (10-0). (Motion #17-52) 

2. CHAIRMAN'S ITEMS

A. Board of Trustees Conference Summary

B. 2017 Public Pension Funding Forum Report by Andrea Rose and Patricia Barney, CPA

MINUTES, AS APPROVED, AT THE DECEMBERS, 2017 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

ITEM 5c

13

0123456789



14

0123456789



15

0123456789



16

0123456789



17

0123456789



18

0123456789



Action &
 Presentations



ITEM 6a

19

0123456789



20

0123456789



21

0123456789



22

0123456789



23

0123456789



24

0123456789



25

0123456789



26

0123456789



27

0123456789



28

0123456789



29

0123456789



30

0123456789



31

0123456789



32

0123456789



33

0123456789



34

0123456789



35

0123456789



36

0123456789



37

0123456789



38

0123456789



39

0123456789



40

0123456789



41

0123456789



42

0123456789



43

0123456789



44

0123456789



45

0123456789



46

0123456789



47

0123456789



48

0123456789



49

0123456789



50

0123456789



51

0123456789



52

0123456789



 

Resolution of Adoption of the White Flint 2 Sector Plan 

 

 

Completed: 1/3/18 

Staff Recommendation  
Approve the Resolution of Adoption. 

Summary  
Attached for your review and approval is M-NCPPC Resolution Number 18-01 to adopt the 
White Flint 2 Sector Plan. The Montgomery County Council, sitting as the District Council, 
approved the White Flint 2 Sector Plan by Resolution Number 18-979 on December 5, 2017.  
The Montgomery County Planning Board is scheduled to approve the adoption of the White 
Flint 2 Sector Plan, Resolution Number 17-130, on January 11, 2018. 

Attachments: 
1. Montgomery County Planning Board Resolution Number 17-130; M-NCPPC Resolution

Number 18-01
2. Montgomery County Council Resolution Number 18-979

Nkosi Yearwood, Senior Planner, Area 2 Division, Nkosi.Yearwood@montgomeryplanning.org, 301.495.1332 

Nancy Sturgeon, Supervisor, Master Plan Team, Area 2 Division, Nancy.Sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org, 
301.495.1308 

Carrie Sanders, Chief, Area 2 Division, Carrie. Sanders@montgomeryplanning.org, 301.495.4653 

M-NCPPC
Item No.
Date:  01/17/18

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

ITEM 6b

53

0123456789

nancy.sturgeon
New Stamp

mailto:Carrie.%20Sanders@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Nancy.Sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Nkosi.Yearwood@montgomeryplanning.org


54

0123456789



ATTACHMENT 1

55

0123456789



56

0123456789



Resolution No.: 18-979 

Introduced: December 5, 2017 

Adopted: December 5, 2017 

 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

SITTING AS THE DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR THAT PORTION 

OF THE MARYLAND-WASHINGTON REGIONAL DISTRICT 

WITHIN MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 

 

By:  County Council 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: Approval of July 2017 White Flint 2 Sector Plan 

 

 

1. On August 8, 2017, the Montgomery County Planning Board transmitted to the County 

Executive and the County Council the July 2017 Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector 

Plan.  

 

2. The July 2017 Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan contains the text and supporting 

maps for an amendment to portions of the approved and adopted 1992 North Bethesda/Garrett 

Park Master Plan and portions of the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan, as amended.  It also amends 

The General Plan (On Wedges and Corridors) for the Physical Development of the Maryland-

Washington Regional District in Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties, as amended; the 

Master Plan of Highways and Transitways, as amended; and the Countywide Bikeways 

Functional Master Plan, as amended. 

 

3. On September 19, 2017, the County Council held a public hearing on the July 2017 Planning 

Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan.  The Sector Plan was referred to the Council’s Planning, 

Housing, and Economic Development Committee for review and recommendations. 

 

4. On September 20, 2017, the Office of Management and Budget transmitted to the County 

Council the Executive’s Fiscal Impact Statement for the July 2017 Planning Board Draft White 

Flint 2 Sector Plan. 

 

5. On October 9, October 23, October 30, and November 6, 2017, the Planning, Housing, and 

Economic Development Committee held worksessions to review the issues raised in 

connection with the Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan. 

 

6. On November 14, 2017, the County Council reviewed the Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 

Sector Plan and the recommendations of the Planning, Housing, and Economic Development 

Committee. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

57

0123456789



Page 2  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Action 

 

The County Council for Montgomery County, Maryland, sitting as the District Council for that 

portion of the Maryland-Washington Regional District in Montgomery County, Maryland, 

approves the following resolution: 

 

The Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan, dated July 2017, is approved with revisions.  

County Council revisions to the Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan are identified 

below.  Deletions to the text of the Plan are indicated by [brackets], additions by underscoring.  

All page references are to the July 2017 Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan. 

 

Page 2:  Add a new sentence at the end of the fourth paragraph as follows:  

 

The Plan recommends up to 6,000 new residential dwelling units, primarily focused along 

Rockville Pike, the Executive Boulevard office park and some areas east of the CSX rail tracks. 

Development potential from the Guardian and Willco properties of approximately 1,800 

dwelling units and 750,000 square feet of non-residential development is added to the phase 

one staging limits in the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan. Development potential from a portion 

of the Wilgus property (Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231) of up to 700 residential 

dwelling units and 180,000 square feet of non-residential development is added to the phase 

two staging limits of the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan.  

 

Page 2:  Revise Table 1 per the Council decision. 

 

Page 3:  Revise Map 1: “White Flint 2 Concept Plan” per the Council decision. 

 

Pages 20-21:  Modify the last bullet on page 20 as follows: 

 

• Encourage 15 percent Moderately Priced Dwelling Units (MPDUs) as the highest priority 

public [amenity] benefit for new residential development under the optional method of 

development, subject to section 11.1.4. 

 

Page 26:  Modify the first paragraph under “5.1.4 Open Spaces” as follows: 

 

Most of the open spaces discussed in this Plan will be provided during the regulatory process 

as part of the public open space requirement. Because of their location or development 

potential, key properties that can make significant contributions to this network are identified 

on Map 11. Expanding the interconnected network of open spaces envisioned by prior planning 

efforts is an important priority of this Plan. The Plan also seeks to preserve existing natural 

areas and make them accessible as open space for existing and emerging communities. New 

open spaces should: 

 

Page 29:  Update Map 10: “White Flint 2 Proposed Overall Zoning” to reflect the Council-

recommended zoning changes. 

 

58

0123456789



Page 3 Resolution No.:  18-979 

Page 30:  Update Map 11: “Overall Height and Density Recommendations” to reflect the Council 

decisions. 

Page 34:  Amend the last sentence of the second paragraph as follows: 

This Plan recommends the retention of the southern and western forested areas to contribute 

to the Plan’s environmental and tree canopy goals, and to [maintain a transitional area to] 

establish a wooded buffer and facilitate a compatible relationship with the existing Luxmanor 

residential community. 

Page 34:  Amend the first bullet under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” as follows: 

Rezone 6000 Executive Boulevard from the EOF 0.75 H100T to the CR [2.0] 2.5, [C1.0 R1.5] 

C 1.5, R 2.0, H200 Zone to promote redevelopment opportunities, including new public 

benefits that [support] further the Sector Plan recommendations. Development on this property 

must transition from a maximum of 200 [foot building heights] feet high at the northeastern 

corner of the property to 70 feet at the southern portion of the property. A minimum 50-foot 

wide landscape area must be retained on the southern portion of the property[. This landscape] 

that will include preserved and new trees, the pedestrian-bike path called for in this Plan, and 

required utility easements. Public open space on this property should consist of a combination 

of an urban greenway, plazas or pocket greens.  

Page 34:  Modify the second bullet under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” as follows: 

Rezone the 6006 Executive Boulevard and 6010 Executive Boulevard properties from the 

EOF 0.75 H100T Zone to the CR 2.0 C1.0 R1.5 H150 Zone to promote infill development and 

support the Sector Plan’s recommended public benefits, including housing options and 

amenities. [The existing water and sewer easement must be retained and the recommended 

path must be located outside of this easement.]  

Pages 34-35:  Modify the third bullet under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” as 

follows:  

Rezone the properties at 6100 Executive Boulevard, 6110 Executive Boulevard, 6116 

Executive Boulevard, and 6120 and 6130 Executive Boulevard from the EOF 0.75 H100T 

Zone to the CR 1.5 C1.5 R1.0 H100 Zone to promote infill development, including new public 

benefits that advance the Sector Plan recommendations. [The existing water and sewer 

easement must be retained and the recommended path must be located outside of this 

easement.]  

Page 35:  Revise Maps 18 and 19 to reflect the Council decisions. 

59

0123456789



Page 4  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Page 35:  Amend the fourth bullet under “B. Design and Connectivity Recommendations” as 

follows: 

 

Create a pedestrian-bike path along the northern edge of the Old Farm-Neilwood Creek area 

with potential mid-block connections to Luxmanor Local Park to the south and Executive 

Boulevard to the north. Extend the path along the western edge of the wooded area to Montrose 

Parkway (Map 19). This path should utilize ecologically sensitive materials for pedestrians and 

bicyclists.  The exact alignment of the path will be determined during the development review 

process in accordance with the Planning Board’s Environmental Guidelines. 

 

Page 37:  Revise the last sentence of the first full paragraph as follows: 

 

[A] At least 1.25[-acre] acres of open space should be provided on the Wilgus property when 

it is developed, either on the area south of the existing townhomes and/or as a neighborhood 

green [must be provided] on the central or eastern portion of the Wilgus property[, while a 

landscaped area must be provided adjacent to].  If the area south of the Cherington townhouses 

is developed with residential units, there should be appropriate transitions between the two 

communities, including landscaping. 

 

Page 37:  Amend the last sentence of the second bullet as follows: 

 

Density from this property could be transferred to the two vacant properties to the east and 

commercial uses should be concentrated to the east. 

 

Page 37:  Modify the third and fourth bullets under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” 

as follows: 

 

• Rezone the vacant property (Parcel N279) from the R-200 Zone to the CR 2.0 C0.25 R1.75 

H-75 Zone to permit new mixed-use development that is predominantly residential, 

contributes to the Plan’s public benefits, and maintains compatibility with the existing 

residential townhouses to the west. No commercial development is permitted directly south 

of the Cherington residential community. Density from this property could be transferred 

to the two vacant properties to the east. 

• Rezone the vacant property (Parcel N273) from the R-200 zone to the CRN 0.75 C0.0 

R0.75 H50 Zone [to promote]. During the development review process, pursue options for 

preserving all or a portion of the wooded area along Montrose Parkway for passive use. 

Ensure that new residential development [that] is compatible with the adjacent townhouse 

community. 

 

Page 37:  Modify the sixth bullet under B. Design and Connectivity Recommendations as follows: 

 

• Create open spaces, including an area with a minimum 1.25[-acre neighborhood green] 

acres, for public use that are connected to the overall open space network.  The location of 

open space should be defined during the development review process and may include 

wooded areas and/or a neighborhood green. 

 

60

0123456789



Page 5 Resolution No.:  18-979 

Page 42:  Insert a new paragraph after the second paragraph under “5.4.5 Sub-area: Jewish 

Community Center” as follows: 

The Morgan Apartments is a multi-family residential development where all residential units 

are two-bedroom units.  There are 20 MPDUs for which the original control period has expired, 

but they are continuing as income-restricted units through an agreement with the Department 

of Housing and Community Affairs (DHCA) that will expire in 2022.  The rents in all other 

units are affordable to households earning about 110% of the area median income (AMI).  If 

the property is redeveloped, the developer must provide 17.5% MPDUs and 2.5% Workforce 

Housing, capped at 100% of AMI, or 20% MPDUs.  DHCA may agree to allow the developer 

to meet some or all of their MPDU or Workforce Housing requirements by designating existing 

two-bedroom units as MPDUs or Workforce Housing, if DHCA determines it benefits the 

County’s affordable housing stock. 

Page 42:  Modify the third paragraph under “5.4.5 Sub-area: Jewish Community Center” as 

follows: 

This Plan supports the floating Commercial Residential Town (CRT) Zone, via a Local Map 

Amendment, for potential redevelopment of the Hebrew Home property. The extension of 

Hubbard Drive onto the Hebrew Home property, along with another new north-south road from 

Montrose Road, will provide greater connectivity to surrounding streets. These roads are not 

required unless and until the existing uses for the entire campus are relocated off-site and the 

site thereafter is either completely redeveloped or the buildings are repurposed for other uses 

under the existing R-200 or the CRT floating zones. New development should be primarily 

residential rather than non-residential. 

Page 42:  Modify the second, third, and fourth bullets and add a new bullet under “A. Land Use 

and Zoning Recommendations” as follows: 

• Support a floating CRT 1.0 C0.25 R1.0 H-100 Zone for the JCC property. Redevelopment

of the campus in its entirety must provide for new public roadway connections to Rockville

Pike and Montrose Road. 

• Rezone the Verizon office building from the R-200 Zone to the [EOF 1.0 H75] CRT-3.0,

C-3.0, R-2.5, H-120 Zone [to align the existing use with an office zone and other office

zones in the area] to provide flexibility for redevelopment and to support the Sector Plan’s

recommended public benefits.

• [Confirm the EOF 3.0 H-100 Zone for the offices] Rezone the office buildings at 6001

Montrose Road and 6101 Montrose Road (Map 33) from the EOF-3.0, H-100 Zone to the

CRT-3.0, C-3.0, R-2.5, H-120 Zone to provide flexibility for redevelopment and to support

the Sector Plan’s recommended public benefits.

• Rezone the Morgan Apartments from the R-20 Zone to the CRT-1.5, C-0.25, R-1.5, H-120

Zone to promote the Sector Plan’s public benefits, including a greater percentage of

MPDUs and dwelling unit mix.

61

0123456789



Page 6  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Page 42:  Modify the third sub-bullet under “B. Design and Connectivity Recommendations” as 

follows: 

 

• Provide additional internal streets to improve connectivity throughout and to provide better 

access for all modes of transit between East Jefferson Street, Rockville Pike, and Montrose 

Road. These internal streets are not required unless and until the existing uses for the entire 

campus are relocated off-site and the site thereafter is either completely redeveloped or the 

buildings are repurposed for other uses under the existing R-200 or the CRT floating zones. 

 

Page 43:  Revise Maps 33 and 34 to reflect the Council decisions. 

 

Pages 46-47:  Modify the fifth paragraph starting on page 46 as follows:  

 

This Plan recommends an overlay zone to retain the light industrial uses while recognizing the 

need for [limited] some residential uses [in the district] at the Randolph Hills Shopping Center 

area[. The proposed overlay zone will be similar in concept to the existing Twinbrook Overlay 

Zone, but it will be more expansive in its residential potential since, unlike the Twinbrook 

Overlay Zone, the residential development in this overlay zone will be not be limited to a 

certain percentage of the existing non-residential floor area on a property] (Map 42). Major 

elements of the proposed White Flint 2 Overlay Zone [are] should be the following: 

  

• Maximum FAR of 1.5;  

• [Maximum Residential FAR of 1.0:] 

• Maximum Building Height of 75 feet;  

• Non-residential uses limited to those allowed in the Light Industrial I-L Zone; 

• Residential uses to be allowed with the balance between light industrial and residential to 

be determined when the Overlay zone is developed[: Multi-unit]; 

• [Ground floor to be used only for non-residential uses allowed in the base I-L Zone;] 

• Minimum Public Use Space of 10 percent required for mixed-use developments;  

• Design guidance in the Plan and separate Urban Design Guidelines; and 

• Site Plan for developments that include residential uses [per the overlay zone]. 

 

Page 47:  Delete the second paragraph as follows: 

 

[This Plan also recommends that a future zoning text amendment should be introduced that 

will comprehensively examine both the Twinbrook and White Flint 2 industrial areas to 

determine how to balance the retention of light industrial zones with residential development.] 

 

Page 47:  Delete the third bullet under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” as follows: 

 

• [Create an overlay zone for this area that would permit residential uses, while retaining 

industrial uses.] 

 

62

0123456789



Page 7  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Page 48:  Delete the third bullet under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” as follows: 

  

• [Create an overlay zone for this area that would permit residential uses, while retaining 

industrial uses.] 

 

Page 48:  Modify the third paragraph under “5.5.3 Area 3: Randolph Hills Shopping Center” as 

follows: 

    

Both the Randolph Hills Shopping Center and the Pickford property offer the opportunity to 

create a mixed-use, neighborhood-serving center that complements the industrial character of 

the area. Both properties could [redeveloped, either] redevelop through the recommended 

overlay industrial zone [or a floating CRT Zone].  [A pedestrian-bike bridge across the CSX 

tracks should be funded either through the county's capital improvements program, or a public-

private partnership, or the public benefits of the CRT Zone. Both properties are suitable for a 

floating CRT 1.5 H-75 Zone. A Floating CRT with 2.0 FAR and a maximum height of 75 feet 

should be supported only if the redevelopment contributes towards funding of a MARC station 

at this location, if MDOT determines that a MARC station will be located here.] 

 

Page 48:  Amend “A. Design and Connectivity Recommendations” as follows: 

 

If the recommended [floating CRT zones or] industrial overlay zone is implemented, 

redevelopment on this location should create a unique center for the Randolph Hills community 

that would: 

 

• Provide work spaces and complementary amenities that are aligned with the unique needs 

of creative and new economy businesses. 

• [Create high-density housing that] Consider housing types that serve families with young 

children and other households. 

• Mix uses to promote collaboration and communication among businesses, residents, and 

the community. 

• Incorporate innovative adaptive reuse techniques and sustainable practices to build new 

structures, retrofit existing structures, and reduce impervious surfaces. 

• Locate a minimum ¾ acre neighborhood green on the Randolph Hills Shopping Center 

property. 

• Locate new residential development to support the neighborhood center envisioned by the 

Randolph Hills community, and to transition adequately to the abutting single-family 

neighborhood. Mixed-use development in this area should: 

o Concentrate light industrial and new mixed-use development that includes multi-family 

residential development on areas furthest from existing single-family detached 

residential use (including the existing shopping center/surface parking lot area, or the 

adjacent Pickford property). The recommended neighborhood green should be located 

within the Randolph Hills Shopping Center surface parking area. 

o Consider residential uses along the Wyaconda Road frontage and adjacent to the 

existing single-family residential development, to establish a compatible relationship 

with the single-family dwellings to the south and east. 

o Reserve areas along the CSX tracks for industrial space and any required access to it. 

63

0123456789



Page 8 Resolution No.:  18-979 

Pages 48-49:  Delete the second paragraph under “5.5.4 Area 4: Nicholson Court” as follows: 

[The 2010 White Flint Sector Plan confirmed the light industrial zone for this area until the 

White Flint 2 Sector Plan can evaluate both sides of the CSX rail tracks. The 2010 Sector Plan 

also recommended a MARC station at Nicholson Court. Maryland Transit Administration 

(MTA) is in the process of creating standards for new infill MARC stations, along the 

Brunswick Line in Montgomery County. This Plan’s recommended staging plan requires that 

MTA conduct a feasibility study in Phase 1 to determine if and where an infill station would 

be located in the Plan area.] 

Page 49:  Modify the second and third bullets under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” 

as follows: 

• [Create an overlay zone for this area that would permit residential uses while retaining

industrial uses.]

• Support [a floating Commercial Residential Town (CRT) Zone with up to 1.5 FAR with

the provision of] a pedestrian-bike crossing of the rail tracks. [The maximum FAR can be

up to 2.0 if a MARC station is funded by the development.]

Page 49:  Update Map 42 to reflect the Council decision to limit the area covered by the Overlay 

zone to the Randolph Hills Shopping Center area. 

Page 51:  Amend the fifth bullet under “A. Land Use and Zoning Recommendations” as follows: 

• [Confirm the R-60 zone for] Rezone the Montgomery County owned property (Parcel No.

P268) from the R-60 zone to the CRT-1.0, C-0.25, R-1.0, H-65 Zone.

Page 58:  Modify the last sentence on the page as follows: 

To increase the supply of affordable housing in the Plan area, this Plan recommends that each 

optional method development in the CR and CRT zones should provide 15 percent MPDUs as 

the highest priority to earn their public [amenity] benefit points, subject to section 11.1.4. 

Page 59:  Amend the first bullet as follows: 

• Require 15 percent MDPUs as the highest priority public [amenity] benefit for all [optional

method projects] new residential development, unless the property is required to dedicate

land for a school site or athletic fields that can be used by MCPS and approximate the size

of a local park.

Page 70:  Amend the first bullet under “8.1.1 Street Network” as follows: 

• Extend Hubbard Drive as a business street (B-1) westward from Rockville Pike (MD 355)

from its current terminus onto the Hebrew Home property, when the property completely

redevelops or the buildings are repurposed for other uses, as noted in Section 5.4.5, to

64

0123456789



Page 9  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

provide greater vehicular and pedestrian connectivity through this large property (Map 57 

and Table 2). 

 

Page 71:  Add a new bullet at the end of the “8.1.1 Street Network” recommendations as follows:  

 

• Extend Hubbard Drive as a public business street from Rockville Pike (MD 355) eastward 

to Chapman Avenue on the Montrose Crossing property. 

 

Page 71:  Amend the first, second and third paragraphs under “8.1.2 Transportation Standards” as 

follows:  

   

This Plan recommends modifying the Local Area Transportation Review (LATR) congestion 

standard [for the Plan area] by raising the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) standard [in the 

western and northern segments of the Plan area-the Executive Boulevard District and Montrose 

North-Rockville Pike Districts-] for three properties―Guardian, Willco and a portion of the 

Wilgus property (Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231)―from its current average intersection 

delay threshold of 71 seconds/vehicle to 120 seconds/vehicle. This recommendation 

recognizes that the existing and planned mixed-use development for [the Executive Boulevard 

and Rockville Pike-Montrose North Districts] these three properties are in character with the 

2010 White Flint Sector Plan, and that new infrastructure from the 2010 White Flint Sector 

Plan area will benefit these [districts] properties since [both] all are near the White Flint [and 

Twinbrook] Metro [Stations] Station.  Adjusting the HCM standard for these [two districts] 

three properties will be consistent with the County’s transportation policy of accepting higher 

levels of traffic congestion in urban areas, which are areas near existing and future transit. 

 

The [area east of the CSX] congestion standard for the remaining segments of the Plan area 

should remain at 71 seconds/vehicle (the broader North Bethesda policy area congestion 

standard) because [the Plan area east of the CSX tracks will have less new development than 

the area west of the tracks, and it is] these areas are relatively less accessible [by] to Metro 

[compared to the northern and western segments of the Plan area].  

 

Unique to the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan area, Local Area Transportation Review (LATR) 

and Transportation Policy Area Review (TPAR) requirements are eliminated and replaced with 

the White Flint Special Taxing District, which funds transportation infrastructure required for 

the staging recommendations in the Plan. This Plan recommends expanding the existing White 

Flint Special Taxing District to include [the Executive Boulevard and Rockville Pike-Montrose 

North Districts] the Guardian and Willco properties and a portion of the Wilgus property 

(Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231). 

 

Page 72:  Revise Map 57:  “Existing and Proposed Street Network” to reflect the Council revisions. 

 

Pages 73-74:  Update Table 2:  “Roadway Classifications” to reflect the Council revisions. 

 

65

0123456789



Page 10  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Page 75:  Revise the last bullet under “8.1.3 Bicycle and Pedestrian Network” and add a new bullet 

as follows:  

 

• All intersections should be [designed] considered as protected intersections to provide the 

safest crossings for bicyclists and pedestrians. 

• Consider building a pedestrian-bike trail over the CSX tracks to connect the Randolph Hills 

Neighborhood with White Flint. 

 

Pages 75 and 79:  Amend the third and fourth paragraphs under “8.1.4 Transit Network” as follows: 

 

[The 2010 White Flint Sector Plan recommended a MARC Station at Nicholson Court and this 

Plan supports this recommendation. It also recommends that the Maryland Transit 

Administration (MTA) conduct a feasibility study to establish new standards for an infill 

MARC station along the Brunswick Line]. In the long-term, a new MARC station is desired 

for the Plan area. This future station must not derogate service then current at the Garrett Park 

MARC station. 

 

The County’s BRT network recommended in the 2013 Countywide Transit Corridors 

Functional Master Plan includes three corridors that are within the Plan area: North Bethesda 

Transitway, Rockville Pike, and Randolph Road. The Rockville Pike BRT route in the Plan 

area will be within the dedicated lanes of Rockville Pike, and it will link to the multiway 

boulevard in the City of Rockville. The Maryland Department of Transportation and the 

Montgomery County Department of Transportation are conducting a BRT corridor planning 

study that will more specifically define BRT on Rockville Pike. The North Bethesda 

Transitway and Randolph Road BRT routes are anticipated to run in mixed traffic within the 

rights-of-way of Old Georgetown Road (MD 187) and Randolph Road, respectively (Map 60). 

The Old Georgetown Road route is one of two possible routes for the North Bethesda 

Transitway, the other being via Tuckerman Lane to the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Station. 

 

Page 76:  Update Map 59:  “Existing and Proposed Bikeway Network” to reflect the Council 

revisions. 

 

Page 77:  Update Table 3:  “Bikeway Facilities” to reflect the Council revisions. 

 

Page 79:  Modify the first full paragraph and second paragraph as follows: 

 

The 2013 Countywide Transit Corridors Functional Master Plan and the preliminary 

Rockville BRT study recommend BRT stations in the Plan area at Hubbard Drive and 

Rockville Pike in the Montrose North-Rockville Pike district; at the intersection of Old 

Georgetown Road and Executive Boulevard to serve the Executive Boulevard district; and 

another station near Loehmann’s Plaza. The transit recommendations are the following: 

 

• Support the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan recommendation to construct a second White 

Flint Metro Station entrance on the southeast corner of the intersection of Rockville Pike 

and Old Georgetown Road. 

66

0123456789



Page 11  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

• Support the alignments and character of both the MD 355 South (Corridor 4) and Randolph 

Road (Corridor 7) BRT corridors through the Plan area, as recommended in the 2013 

Countywide Transit Corridors Functional Master Plan. 

• Support the recommendation that Maryland Department of Transportation 

[Administration] conduct a feasibility study for an infill MARC station in the Plan area. 

• Implement a circulator or shuttle that provides local service for residents and businesses in 

the Plan area and adjacent Planning areas, including the White Flint Metro Station. 

 

A shuttle or circulator is recommended [in the staging plan as an infrastructure project that 

will] to increase [contribute towards increasing] the mobility options in the Plan area, and to 

contribute towards achieving the recommended NADMS goal.  The shuttle service [can] could 

begin as a developer initiative [limited to a few properties] and expand to be a public/private 

service for the larger plan area, or it [can] could be funded entirely as a public shuttle/circulator 

for the area. 

 

Page 80:  Update the second and third paragraphs under “8.1.6 Transportation Demand 

Management” as follows: 

 

This Plan recommends [a higher NADMS goal for properties in the Executive Boulevard and 

Rockville Pike-Montrose North districts, while areas east of the CSX tracks will have lower 

NADMS goal] that the Guardian, Willco and a portion of the Wilgus properties (Parcels N208, 

N279, N174, and N231) will be subject to the NADMS goals in the White Flint Sector Plan’s 

(April 2010) staging, depending upon the staging phase. 

 

[The higher NADMS goal for the Executive Boulevard and Rockville Pike-Montrose North 

districts mirrors the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan area NADMS recommendations since these 

districts are between two Metro Station areas, adjacent to recommended and new transportation 

infrastructure of the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan, and will be served by future BRT routes. 

Unlike the 2010 Sector Plan, each phase of the staging plan requires NADMS goals for both 

residents and employees.] This Plan recommends a blended average NADMS goal of 40 

percent at buildout for all other properties in this Plan.  The area east of the CSX tracks has 

relatively less accessibility to Metrorail due to the limited areas for crossing the CSX tracks.  

As a result, the area east of the CSX tracks will likely have an NADMS at buildout lower than 

40 percent, and the area north and west of the CSX tracks will likely have an NADMS at 

buildout higher than 40 percent. 

 

[In addition, these NADMS goals are consistent with the urbanizing character of this portion 

of North Bethesda. They] NADMS goals will be [achievable] achieved through a combination 

of land use (density, diversity and design) and zoning requirements, transit improvements, and 

supportive TDM programs[, such as shuttles and bike-sharing,] managed by the North 

Bethesda Transportation Management District. 

 

Page 80:  Modify the two paragraphs under “8.1.8 East Jefferson Street” as follows: 

 

East Jefferson Street provides western access to the City of Rockville. It is classified as an 

arterial with five travel lanes, including a turn lane for a segment of the roadway. This Plan 

67

0123456789



Page 12 Resolution No.:  18-979 

recommends the reclassification of East Jefferson Street to a business street with [a protected 

bikeway] either a separated bikeway or standard bike lanes to link the proposed bikeway 

network between Executive Boulevard and the City of Rockville[.  To implement the bikeway 

recommendation, the Plan recommends modifying the existing number of travel lanes to two 

travel lanes in each direction with a center turning lane] (Figure 4). 

Page 81:  Update Figure 4:  “East Jefferson Street with Protected Bikeway” to reflect the Council 

decision. 

Page 88:  Modify the fourth bullet under “C. Create green parks when development occurs within 

the Plan area” as follows:  

Create a minimum 1¼-acre [Neighborhood Green Urban Park] open space area for public use 

at the Wilgus Property when it redevelops. This [park should] area could include neighborhood 

amenities, including a flexible green gathering place, picnic areas, and play features or maybe 

a wooded area with passive recreation. It should be linked to the Montrose Parkway bikeway 

by a trail connection. 

Page 92:  Modify the paragraph under “10.1.3 Libraries” as follows: 

A public library is recommended in the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan. The Montgomery 

County Department of Public Libraries [endorses] notes the recommendation for a public 

library in the Metro East or Metro West Districts in the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan area, but 

acknowledges that delivery of library services is an evolving practice. [This] Any future library 

[, along with] or delivery of library services should be considered in the context of other 

libraries in the greater North Bethesda vicinity[, including Twinbrook and Rockville, will 

provide sufficient library services for the White Flint 2 Plan area]. Evaluating the delivery of 

services in the future should include consideration of non-traditional methods such as self-

service options, MCPL outreach programs at non-library facilities and internet-based 

programming. 

Page 93:  Remove the symbol for the single site identified as a Proposed White Flint 2 Sector Plan 

school, since the Sector Plan includes a process for evaluating numerous potential sites for schools. 

Page 94:  Update Table 4 to include enrollment forecasts for 2046 in the Superintendent’s 

Recommended FY 2019 Capital Budget, and enrollment generated by the residential development 

in the Council-approved White Flint 2 Sector Plan. 

Page 95:  Delete the last sentence of the first full paragraph as follows: 

[This Plan’s recommended staging indicates that a new elementary school be built by the third 

stage of the phasing plan.] 

68

0123456789



Page 13 Resolution No.:  18-979 

Page 96:  Add a new paragraph directly under “10.1.8 Walter Johnson Cluster” as follows: 

Residential development in the Rock Spring, White Flint, White Flint 2, and Grosvenor-

Strathmore master and sector plans have the potential to impact school enrollment. Several 

potential means of adding school capacity are noted in the sections below. In addition, if there 

is a major development or redevelopment within these planning areas, several sites or a 

combination of sites may be appropriate for consideration of a public school. Each and every 

development application should be thoroughly evaluated for a potential school site, 

notwithstanding any previous development approvals. It is this Plan’s direction that the 

Planning Department will negotiate for maximum dedication of land for a school and that this 

be the top priority benefit under the review process of projects proceeding under these plans. 

Page 96:  Revise the second sentence in the paragraph entitled “Facility Planning at the Walter 

Johnson Cluster” as follows: 

The Board of Education is addressing enrollment capacity issues in the Cluster through several 

actions, including [utilizing] future utilization of an annex facility at Garrett Park Elementary 

and [convening a roundtable discussion to include] the completion of a study group that 

included representatives from the Downcounty Consortium high schools and the Walter 

Johnson, Whitman, and Bethesda-Chevy Chase high school [cluster] clusters. 

Page 96:  Revise the last sentence in the first bullet under “A. Elementary Schools” as follows: 

Therefore, all Cluster schools will be at the high end of the range of student enrollment with 

capacities ranging from [729] 714 to [881] 777; no further expansions will be considered. 

Page 97:  Revise the first full bullet as follows: 

• Construct a new middle school.  There [are two] is one future middle school [sites] site in

the vicinity of the Walter Johnson Cluster[.]:  [The] the Brickyard Middle School site [is]

in the Winston Churchill Cluster [and the King Farm Middle School site is in in the Richard

Montgomery Cluster].  If building a new school at [these locations] this location is

considered infeasible, then the purchase of a middle school site or co-location with a park[,]

could be considered.

Page 97:  Revise the first bullet under “C. High Schools” as follows: 

• Build an addition at Walter Johnson High School.  The high school [currently has an

enrollment] had a capacity in the fall of 2017 of [2,335] 2,330 students.  [Long range

enrollment projections indicate 3,500 students by 2045 not counting any students generated

by this Plan and other North Bethesda plans currently underway.] However, long-term

enrollment projections for the school developed in the fall of 2017 anticipate enrollment

reaching 4,010 students by 2032, including some, but not all, of the students that would be

generated by the North Bethesda plans.  [If the high school capacity was increased to 3,500

students or more, it may be possible to accommodate the build-out of this Plan.]

69

0123456789



Page 14  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Page 97:  Revise the second bullet under “C. High Schools” as follows: 

 

• [Reopen] The Board of Education has requested funds to reopen the former Woodward High 

School.  Reopening this facility and expanding it over time will accommodate projected 

enrollment increases from this Plan, the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan, and the Rock Spring 

Master Plan currently underway.  An addition at Woodward could take the school up to 

2,400 students, which, when combined with Walter Johnson capacity, could total up to 

4,400 students.  An expanded Woodward may also contribute to [alleviate] alleviating 

overcrowding at [Bethesda-Chevy Chase or Whitman] adjacent high schools. 

 

Page 97:  Delete the last bullet under “C. High Schools” as follows: 

 

• [Beyond the approaches noted above, reassign students from the Walter Johnson Cluster 

to high schools with available enrollment capacity, or expand their capacities.  Currently, 

most high schools adjacent to the Walter Johnson Cluster are projected to have enrollments 

greater than their capacities, and will already be built out to the high end of the desired 

enrollment size of 2,400 students each.  The exception is Rockville High School.  Although 

this school is projected to be fully enrolled in the next six years, with a capacity of 1,570, 

it is relatively small for a high school by current standards.  An addition at this high school, 

with reassignment of students from this Plan area, could be considered in the future.] 

 

Page 98:  Add a bullet under “B. Middle Schools” as follows: 

 

• Consider locating a middle or high school site on the Rocking Horse Road Center facility 

in the Randolph Hills neighborhood. 

 

Page 98:  Amend the second sub-bullet under the last bullet under “C. Middle Schools” as follows: 

 

• Construct a new middle school by either purchasing a new site or collocating with a park 

[since there are no recommended middle school sites in the Downcounty Consortium]. 

 

Page 99:  Revise the first sub-bullet as follows: 

 

[Reopen the former Woodward High School in the Walter Johnson Cluster, currently under 

consideration as a part of the community roundtable discussion process (described under 

“Walter John Cluster School Facilities” in this Plan]. The Board of Education has requested 

funds to reopen the former Woodward High School in the Walter Johnson Cluster.  This [option 

would] may require reassignment of students from the Downcounty Consortium portion of the 

White Flint 2 Sector Plan area [from Walter Johnson cluster] to this high school. 

 

Page 99:  Amend the second sub-bullet under the first bullet as follows: 

 

• Construct a new high school by either purchasing a new site or co-locating with a park [as 

there are no recommended future high school sites in the Downcounty]. 

 

70

0123456789



Page 15 Resolution No.:  18-979 

Page 102:  Amend the third and fourth paragraphs under “11.1.2 Financing” as follows: 

Due to the proximity of the northern and western portions of the White Flint 2 Plan area to the 

2010 White Flint Sector Plan area, the Willco, Guardian, and a portion of the Wilgus (Parcels 

N174, N231, N208, and N279) properties in the Executive Boulevard and the Rockville Pike-

Montrose North Districts would benefit substantially from the new transportation 

infrastructure improvements in the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan[, including the Western 

Workaround and the second Metro station entrance]. Balancing the considerations of equity 

and infrastructure benefits between these [areas] properties, this Plan recommends that these 

three properties in the [northwestern] western portion of the Plan area contribute towards the 

implementation and funding of these infrastructure improvements. [Therefore, the 

northwestern area of this Plan should have the same financing mechanism as the 2010 White 

Flint Sector Plan area]. [Subsequently] Consequently, the Willco and Guardian properties and 

a portion of the Wilgus property (Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231) [properties in the 

Executive Boulevard and Rockville Pike-Montrose North districts] will have the same benefit 

of no LATR review for new developments. 

[New infrastructure that is associated with properties east of the CSX tracks and are further 

away from new infrastructure in the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan could be financed via a Local 

Transportation Improvement Program or a Unified Mobility Program.]  

Page 103:  Update Map 64 to reflect the Council decisions. 

Page 104:  Modify the fourth full paragraph as follows: 

An industrial mixed-use overlay zone is recommended for Light Industrial (IL) zoned 

properties [primarily east of the CSX tracks and at Nicholson Court] in the Randolph Hills 

Shopping Center area. The Plan’s objective of preserving the existing light industrial uses in 

the area east of the tracks while providing flexibility to create some residential use [on upper 

floors] will be implemented through the new overlay zone. This overlay zone [will be similar 

in concept to the existing Twinbrook Overlay Zone, but it will be more expansive in its 

residential potential, and] will be implemented through a zoning text amendment to the Zoning 

Ordinance. 

Page 104:  Add a bullet and amend the first two bullets under “11.1.4 Public Benefits in the EOF, 

CRT and CR Zones” as follows: 

• Dedication of land for needed school sites as the highest priority public benefit.

• Fifteen (15) percent MPDUs as the highest priority public [amenity] benefit for new

residential development, unless the property is required to dedicate land for a school site

or athletic fields that can be used by MCPS and approximate the size of a local park.

• The provision of major public facilities other than school sites, including but not limited

to:[, a dedicated elementary or middle school site;] land for school athletic fields; new

neighborhood parks and open spaces; [bike share stations;] public transportation (new

Metro Station entrance); and undergrounding of utilities.

71

0123456789



Page 16  Resolution No.:  18-979 

 

Pages 104-106:  Amend the “11.1.5 Staging of Development” section as follows: 

 

Staging of development links new development with the provision of public infrastructure 

required to support the Plan recommendations. [Prior North Bethesda master plans, including 

the 1992 North Bethesda-Garrett Park Master Plan and 2010 White Flint Sector Plan required 

staging of new residential and non-residential development with required public infrastructure, 

especially transportation.] The 2010 White Flint Sector Plan established a three-phased staging 

plan that links new development with required mobility and transportation infrastructure to 

support new development and contribute to creating a new urban area. 

 

This Plan’s [proposed] staging recommendation is influenced [by various factors, but] 

primarily by the adjacency of [the area] three properties to the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan 

area and its staging plan, and the common infrastructure improvements, such as [Rockville 

Pike BRT,] Executive Boulevard/Western [workaround] Workaround improvements, and the 

White Flint Metro Station[, that would be needed to support new development in both plan 

areas]. This Plan includes the Guardian and Willco properties and a portion of the Wilgus 

property (Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231) within the staging limits in the 2010 White 

Flint Sector Plan by: 

 

• increasing the Phase 1 cap from 3,000 dwelling units and 2 million square feet of non-

residential development to 4,800 dwelling units and 2.75 million square feet of non-

residential development; and 

• increasing the Phase 2 cap from 3,000 dwelling units and 2 million square feet of non-

residential development to 3,700 dwelling units and 2.18 million square feet of non-

residential development. 

 

[The proposed staging framework is guided by the following principles: 

• Ensure an adequate level of development or tax contributions to help fund new 

infrastructure. 

• Address the infrastructure needs for White Flint 2 while balancing the infrastructure needs 

of both White Flint plan areas. 

• Limit the free-rider effect where properties in White Flint 2 could benefit 

disproportionately from new infrastructure in the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan area. 

• Development in the core of the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan, which is near to the Metro 

Station and along Rockville Pike, should be prioritized before White Flint 2 properties are 

developed.] 

 

[The Planning Board should take the following actions before the proposed staging plan takes 

effect.  

• Expand the existing White Flint Sector Plan Implementation Advisory Committee to 

include the stakeholders from the White Flint 2 Sector Plan area. 

• Expand the White Flint Sector Plan biennial monitoring report to include staging 

recommendations in this Plan.] 

 

[Prior to approval of any new development in the Plan area, the] The following implementation 

actions must be taken: 

72

0123456789



Page 17 Resolution No.:  18-979 

• Within [six] three months of adopting the [Sectional Map Amendment] SMA, the County

Council should amend the North Bethesda Policy Area to [create a new Local Area

Transportation Review (LATR) Policy Area for the White Flint 2 area] reflect the

expansion of the White Flint Metro Station Policy Area to include the Guardian, Willco,

and a portion of the Wilgus (Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231) properties.

• Within [12] six months of adopting the SMA, [determine if a public financing mechanism

will be established to fund public infrastructure recommended by the Plan] extend the

existing White Flint Special Taxing District to include the Willco, Guardian and a portion

of the Wilgus (Parcels N208, N279, N174, and N231) properties.

• The Planning Board must [create a staging allocation procedure for new development in

the Plan area or] modify the existing White Flint Sector Plan Implementation Guidelines

to account for the Willco, Guardian, and a portion of the Wilgus (Parcels N208, N279,

N174, and N231) properties.

[The recommended staging plan combines key staging transportation infrastructure 

requirements from the 2010 White Flint Sector Plan with new transportation and public 

facilities from this Plan. This combination approach acknowledges the relationship and 

infrastructure linkages between the two plan areas (Table 5).] 

[The recommended zoning envelope has more potential density than what is permitted in the 

staging plan. The amount of development represents the desired mix of new development in 

White Flint 2 that will be predominately residential, approximately more than 60 percent, with 

the remaining development as non-residential. The recommended development is divided into 

three phases with the largest amount in the third phase. The NADMS goals further the County’s 

investment in promoting transit and other non-automotive modes.] 

[New development can occur anywhere in the Plan area. Infrastructure listed for each phase 

could be funded either through the Capital Improvements Program (CIP), Consolidated 

Transportation Program (CTP) for State projects, White Flint Special Taxing District, public-

private partnership, or developer initiative or contribution. During each phase, the Planning 

Board may approve both residential and non-residential development until it reaches its 

maximum allowed limit, at which time any further development in that category (residential 

or non-residential, whichever has reached the allowed limit) will need to demonstrate that the 

staging requirements to proceed to the next phase have been met.] 

Page 105:  Delete Table 5 to reflect the Council decision. 

Page 107:  Modify Table 6 per the Council decisions. 

General 

All illustrations and tables included in the Plan will be revised to reflect the District Council 

changes to the Planning Board Draft White Flint 2 Sector Plan (July 2017).  The text and graphics 

will be revised as necessary to achieve and improve clarity and consistency, to update factual 

73

0123456789



Page 18 Resolution No.:  18-979 

information, and to convey the actions of the District Council.  Graphics and tables will be revised 

and re-numbered, where necessary, to be consistent with the text and titles. 

This is a correct copy of Council action. 

Linda M. Lauer, Clerk of the Council 

74

0123456789



Recommendation 
Approve the Resolution of Adoption. 

Summary 
Attached for your review and approval is M-NCPPC Resolution Number 18-02 to adopt the Grosvenor-
Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan.  The Montgomery County Council, sitting as the District Council, 
approved the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan by Resolution Number 18-978 on 
December 5, 2017.  The Montgomery County Planning Board is scheduled to approve the adoption of the 
Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan by Resolution Number 18-001 on January 11, 2018. 

Attachments: 
1. Montgomery County Planning Board Resolution No. 18-001; M-NCPPC Resolution No. 18-02
2. Montgomery County Council Resolution No. 18-978

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

M-NCPPC
Item No.
Date: 1/17/18

Resolution of Adoption of the Approved Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan 

Maren Hill, Senior Planner, Area 2 Division, maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org, 301.650.5613 

Nancy Sturgeon, Supervisor, Master Plan Team, Area 2 Division, nancy.sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org, 301.495.1308 

Carrie Sanders, Chief, Area 2 Division, carrie.sanders@montgomeryplanning.org, 301.495.4653 

Completed: 1/3/18 

ITEM 6c

75

0123456789

nancy.sturgeon
New Stamp



76

0123456789



ATTACHMENT 1

77

0123456789



78

0123456789



Resolution No.: 18-978 

Introduced: December 5, 2017 

Adopted: December 5, 2017 

 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

SITTING AS THE DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR THAT PORTION 

OF THE MARYLAND-WASHINGTON REGIONAL DISTRICT 

WITHIN MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 

 

By:  County Council 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: Approval of July 2017 Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan 

 

 

1. On September 12, 2017, the Montgomery County Planning Board transmitted to the County 

Executive and the County Council the July 2017 Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore 

Metro Area Minor Master Plan.  

 

2. The July 2017 Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan 

contains the text and supporting maps for an amendment to portions of the approved and 

adopted 1992 North Bethesda/Garrett Park Master Plan.  It also amends The General Plan (On 

Wedges and Corridors) for the Physical Development of the Maryland-Washington Regional 

District in Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties, as amended; the Master Plan of 

Highways and Transitways, as amended; and the Countywide Bikeways Functional Master 

Plan, as amended. 

 

3. On October 24, 2017, the County Council held a public hearing on the July 2017 Planning 

Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan.  The Minor Master Plan 

was referred to the Council’s Planning, Housing, and Economic Development Committee for 

review and recommendations. 

 

4. On October 25, 2017, the Office of Management and Budget transmitted to the County Council 

the Executive’s Fiscal Impact Statement for the July 2017 Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-

Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan. 

 

5. On November 6 and November 13, 2017, the Planning, Housing, and Economic Development 

Committee held worksessions to review the issues raised in connection with the Planning 

Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan. 

 

6. On November 28, 2017, the County Council reviewed the Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-

Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan and the recommendations of the Planning, Housing, 

and Economic Development Committee. 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

79

0123456789



Page 2 Resolution No.:  18-978 

 

 

Action 

 

The County Council for Montgomery County, Maryland, sitting as the District Council for that 

portion of the Maryland-Washington Regional District in Montgomery County, Maryland, 

approves the following resolution: 

 

The Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan, dated July 2017, 

is approved with revisions.  County Council revisions to the Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-

Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan are identified below.  Deletions to the text of the Plan 

are indicated by [brackets], additions by underscoring.  All page references are to the July 2017 

Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan.   

 

Page 2:  Delete the first paragraph and revise the second paragraph as follows: 

 

[An area master plan, after approval by the County Council and adoption by The Maryland-

National Capital Park and Planning Commission, constitutes an amendment to The General 

Plan (On Wedges and Corridors) for Montgomery County. Each area master plan reflects a 

vision of future development that responds to the unique character of the local community 

within the context of a County-wide perspective. Area master plans are intended to convey 

land use policy for defined geographic areas and should be interpreted together with relevant 

County-wide functional master plans.]  

 

This [Minor Master] Plan [Amendment] contains text and supporting maps for a [minor] 

comprehensive amendment to portions of the approved and adopted 1992 North 

Bethesda/Garrett Park Master Plan, as amended. It also amends The General Plan (On Wedges 

and Corridors) for the Physical Development of the Maryland-Washington Regional District 

in Montgomery and Prince George’s Counties, as amended; the Master Plan of Highways and 

Transitways, as amended; and the Countywide Bikeways Functional Master Plan, as amended. 

Each area master plan reflects a vision of future development that responds to the unique 

character of the local community within the context of a countywide perspective. Area master 

plans are intended to convey land use policy for defined geographic areas and should be 

interpreted together with relevant countywide functional master plans. The minor amendment 

process provides an opportunity to reassess the Plan area and analyze alternative land use 

redevelopment, design, and zoning opportunities. The review considers existing development 

and reevaluates the area’s potential within the context of a changing market in the region, the 

intent and rationale of the 1992 North Bethesda/Garrett Park Master Plan, community input, 

and impacts to the surrounding land uses and transportation network.  

 

Page 22:  Add a bullet below the first bullet under “Metro site Recommendations” as follows: 

 

• Allow a maximum height of 300 feet over the Metrorail tracks directly west of the Metro 

site. 

 

80

0123456789



Page 3 Resolution No.:  18-978 

 

Page 22:  Amend the last bullet under “Metro site Recommendations” as follows: 

 

• Provide 15 percent MPDUs on the Metro site as the highest priority public benefit. 

 

Page 23:  Update the map to reflect Council-recommended zoning changes. 

 

Page 49:  Revise the text of the “Goal” statement as follows: 

 

Goal: Achieve a [45] blended 50 percent Non-Auto Driver Mode Share (NADMS) by 2040 for 

the Plan area.   

 

Page 56:  Modify the first bullet as follows: 

 

• Create a new shared street that extends from the intersection of Strathmore Park Court and 

Strathmore Hall Street to the traffic light at Tuckerman Lane near the drop-off area for 

Strathmore Hall.  Figure 24 shows the street alignment.  The new street, which may be 

private, should be designed to maximize the segregation of pedestrians, bicyclists and 

vehicles, and slow traffic speeds.  If constructed as a private street, it will be subject to the 

following conditions: 

o Public easements must be granted for the roadway and be reviewed by the 

Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC) and the 

Department of Transportation (MCDOT) for connectivity and consistency with this 

Plan prior to acceptance of the easement. 

o The design of the road must follow or improve the corresponding Road Code 

standard for a similar public road, unless approved by MCDOT and the Planning 

Board at the subdivision review stage or otherwise specified in the Sector Plan. 

o Installation of any public utilities must be permitted with such easement. 

o The road will not be closed for any reason unless approved by MCDOT. 

o Approval from the Department of Fire and Rescue must be obtained for purpose of 

fire access. 

o The public easement may be volumetric to accommodate uses above or below the 

designated easement area. 

o The County may require the applicants to install appropriate traffic control devices 

within the public easement, and the easement must grant the right to the County to 

construct and install such devices. 

o Maintenance and Liability Agreements will be required for each Easement Area.  

These agreements must identify the applicants’ responsibility to maintain all of the 

improvements within their Easement Area in good fashion and in accordance with 

applicable laws and regulations. 

 

Page 56:  Add the roadway classification map to the page after Table 6.  

 

Page 74:  Add the following sentences at the end of the paragraph as follows: 

 

The 2010 White Flint Sector Plan recommended a future recreation center at Wall Local 

Park/Kennedy Shriver Aquatic Center. This site would permit the co-location of the existing 

81

0123456789



Page 4 Resolution No.:  18-978 

 

Aquatic Center, including an expansion, and an urban park. The Montgomery County 

Department of Recreation recommends that the Wall Park community center serve all of North 

Bethesda, including the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan area. 

 

Page 76:  Add a new paragraph after the first paragraph under “Facility Planning in the Walter 

Johnson Cluster” as follows: 

 

Residential development in the Rock Spring, White Flint, White Flint 2, and Grosvenor-

Strathmore master and sector plans has the potential to impact school enrollment.  Several 

potential means of adding school capacity are noted in the sections below.  In addition, if there 

is a major development or redevelopment within these planning areas, several sites or 

combinations of sites may be appropriate for consideration of a public school. Each and every 

development application should be thoroughly evaluated for a potential school site, 

notwithstanding any previous development approvals.  It is this Plan’s direction that the 

Planning Board will negotiate for maximum dedication of land for a school and that this be the 

top priority amenity under the review process for projects proceeding under these plans.  This 

requirement is the same as requirements in the Rock Spring and White Flint 2 Sector Plans, 

which are in the same high school cluster; however, it is highly unlikely that a school site will 

be found on the limited area likely to develop/redevelop in the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro 

Area Minor Master Plan area. 

 

Page 76:  Update the figure in the third sentence of the first bullet in the left column of the page as 

follows: 

 

Ashburton Elementary School has an addition planned that will increase its capacity to [881] 

770 students. 

 

Page 76: Update the last sentence of the first bullet in the left column of the page as follows: 

 

Therefore, all cluster schools will be at the high end of the range of student enrollment, with 

capacities ranging from [729] 714 to [881] 777, and no further additions will be considered. 

 

Page 77:  Revise the third sentence of the first bullet under “Middle Schools” as follows: 

 

This increase will address projected enrollment through [2022-2023] 2023-2024. 

 

Page 77:  Modify the sub-bullet under the third bullet under “Middle Schools” as follows: 

 

• Construct a new middle school.  There [are two] is one future middle school [sites near] 

site in the vicinity of the Walter Johnson Cluster:  the Brickyard Middle School site is in 

the Winston Churchill Cluster [; and the King Farm Middle School site is in the Richard 

Montgomery Cluster].  If building a new school at [these locations] this location is not 

considered feasible, then the purchase of a middle school site could be considered. 

 

82

0123456789



Page 5 Resolution No.:  18-978 

 

Page 77:  Revise the first bullet under “High Schools” as follows: 

 

• Build an addition at Walter Johnson High School.  The high school [currently has] had a 

capacity in the fall of 2017 of [2,335] 2,330 students.  [Long] However, long-term 

enrollment projections for the school show enrollment reaching [3,500] 4,010 students by 

the year [2045] 2032.  This projected enrollment does not include [any of] all the students 

that would be generated by the White Flint 2, Rock Spring, or this Plan.  [If the high school 

capacity was increased to 3,500 students or more, it may be possible to accommodate the 

build-out of the White Flint 2 and Rock Spring plans.] 

 

Page 77:  Revise the first sentence of the second bullet under “High Schools” as follows: 

 

[A second approach being considered to address high school enrollment growth in the Walter 

Johnson Cluster is] The Board of Education has requested funding for the reopening of the 

former Woodward High School on Old Georgetown Road, located between the Rock Spring 

and White Flint 2 plan areas. 

 

Page 77:  Delete the bulleted third paragraph under “High Schools” as follows: 

 

• [Beyond the approaches mentioned above, reassignment of students from the Walter 

Johnson Cluster to high schools with available capacity, or with the ability to have their 

capacities increased, could be considered.  Currently, most high schools adjacent to the 

Walter Johnson Cluster are projected to have enrollments above their capacities, and will 

already be built out to the high end of the desired enrollment size of 2,400 students.  The 

exception to this situation is Rockville High School.  Although this school is projected to 

be fully enrolled in the next six years, with a capacity for 1,570 students it is relatively 

small by current standards.  If an addition could be built at this high school, then 

reassignment of students to the high school could be considered in the future.] 

 

Page 81:  Add the following bullets after the first sentence on the page as follows: 

 

The following public benefit categories are priorities for this Plan area: 

 

• Dedication of land for needed school sites is the highest priority public amenity for 

development and redevelopment in North Bethesda, but may not be feasible in the 

Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro planning area. 

• Providing fifteen (15) percent Moderately Priced Dwelling Units (MPDUs) is the highest 

priority public benefit for new residential development, unless the property is required to 

dedicate land for a school or athletic fields that can be used by MCPS and approximate the 

size of a local park. 

• Other than school sites, major public facilities include, but are not limited to, land for parks 

and school athletic fields, a library, recreation center, County service center, public 

transportation or utility upgrade.  Major public facilities provide public services at a 

convenient location where increased density creates a greater need for civic uses and 

greater demands on public infrastructure. 

 

83

0123456789



Page 6 Resolution No.:  18-978 

Page 81:  Update the map and table to reflect Council-recommended zoning changes. 

General 

All illustrations and tables included in the Plan will be revised to reflect the District Council 

changes to the Planning Board Draft Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan (July 

2017).  The text and graphics will be revised as necessary to achieve and improve clarity and 

consistency, to update factual information, and to convey the actions of the District Council.  

Graphics and tables will be revised and renumbered, where necessary, to be consistent with the 

text and titles. 

This is a correct copy of Council action. 

Linda M. Lauer, Clerk of the Council 

84

0123456789



T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

2
0
1
7
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
Y
E
A
R
 E

N
D

 R
E
V
IE

W

1

Ja
n
u
ar

y 
1
7
, 2

0
1
8

Pr
es

en
te

d
 b

y 
G

re
go

ry
 G

or
d
on

, C
h
a
ir
 &

 R
ob

er
t 

Fe
el

ey
, V

ic
e-

ch
a
ir
, 2

0
1
7
 

M
-N

C
PP

C
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 C
ou

n
ci

l

IT
E

M
 6

d

85

0123456789



M
IS

SI
O

N
 &

 V
IS

IO
N

T
h
e
 m

is
si

o
n

o
f 
th

e
 M

-N
C

P
P
C

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
is

 

to
 a

d
vi

se
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 o

n
 d

e
ve

lo
p
in

g 
an

d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g 

a 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

p
o
lic

y 
fr

am
e
w

o
rk

 t
h
at

 

p
ro

m
o
te

s 
an

 i
n
cl

u
si

ve
 w

o
rk

p
la

ce
, m

e
as

u
re

s 
p
ro

gr
e
ss

, 

an
d
 e

n
su

re
s 

e
ff
e
ct

iv
e
 p

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

an
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

b
o
th

 

in
te

rn
al

ly
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
al

ly
.

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
o
f 
th

e
 M

-N
C

P
P
C

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
is

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 b
e
h
av

io
r 

in
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

ce
 t

h
at

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s 

to
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g,
 r

e
sp

e
ct

in
g,
 a

n
d
 v

al
u
in

g 
al

l 
p
e
o
p
le

. 

T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

2

86

0123456789



D
IV

E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

U
T

R
E
A

C
H

P
ri

n
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
al

 

ra
ck

 c
ar

d
, n

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e
 h

an
d
o
u
t, 

 

an
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
al

 r
o
vi

n
g 

b
an

n
e
r, 

as
 

co
n
st

an
t 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

an
d
 i
ts

 m
is

si
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ar
ti
ci

p
at

e
d
 a

n
d
 

su
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
te

rn
al

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

p
ro

gr
am

s

T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
3

87

0123456789



W
O

M
E
N

’S
 H

IS
T
O

R
Y

 M
O

N
T

H
 C

E
L
E
B

R
A

T
IO

N

A
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
-w

id
e
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 r

e
co

gn
iz

in
g 

th
e
 

co
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

ce
. T

h
e
 2

0
1
7
 

W
o
m

e
n
’s
 H

is
to

ry
 M

o
n
th

 t
h
e
m

e
 w

as
 H

on
or

in
g 

Tr
a
ilb

la
zi

n
g 

W
om

en
 i
n
 L

a
b
or

 a
n
d
 B

u
si
n
es

s.
 

A
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
: 2

0
0
+

K
e
y
n

o
te

 S
p

e
a
k
e
r:

 G
ra

ce
ly

n
 A

sh
b
y 

M
cD

e
rm

o
tt

A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s:
 T

ai
 C

h
i 
fo

r 
St

re
ss

 R
e
d
u
ct

io
n

T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

4

88

0123456789



D
IV

E
R

SI
T

Y
 &

 I
N

C
L
U

SI
O

N
 C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
-W

ID
E
 S

U
R
V

E
Y

T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

5

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

n
al

yz
e
d
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
7
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
-

w
id

e
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y 

an
d
 I
n
cl

u
si

o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y.
  T

h
e
 g

o
al

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
rv

e
y 

w
as

 t
o
 g

at
h
e
r 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

st
at

is
ti
cs

, 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s 

ar
o
u
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y 

an
d
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n
, a

n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 f
e
e
d
b
ac

k
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 C

o
u
n
ci

ls
 

st
ra

te
gi

e
s 

an
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
ve

s 

T
o

ta
l 
P

a
r
ti

c
ip

a
n

ts
: 6

2
7
 E

m
p
lo

ye
e
s

O
v
e
ra

ll
 F

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
: 9

0
%

 o
f 
e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s 

ar
e
 

co
m

fo
rt

ab
le

 w
it
h
 w

o
rk

in
g 

w
it
h
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

ag
e
s,
 g

e
n
d
e
rs

, e
th

n
ic

it
ie

s,
 r

e
lig

io
n
s,
 c

u
lt
u
re

s,
 o

r 

se
x
u
al

 o
ri

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s.
 

89

0123456789



6

90

0123456789



C
O

N
N

E
C

T
: A

 D
IV

E
R

SI
T

Y
 &

 I
N

C
L
U

SI
O

N
 C

E
L
E
B

R
A

T
IO

N

A
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
-w

id
e
 e

ve
n
t 

d
e
si

gn
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

an
d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y,
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y 

co
m

p
e
te

n
cy

 a
n
d
 

to
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

e
n
ri

ch
e
s 

o
u
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
al

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 l
iv

e
s.
 T

h
is

 e
ve

n
t 

w
as

 h
e
ld

 a
t 

th
e
 

C
la

ri
ce

 P
e
rf

o
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
C

e
n
te

r

A
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
: 6

0
0
+

K
e
y
n

o
te

 S
p

e
a
k
e
r:

 M
o
n
iq

u
e
 J
o
h
n
so

n

P
e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

: S
u
rr

at
ts

vi
lle

H
ig

h
 S

ch
o
o
l 
JR

O
T

C
, 

N
O

V
A

 A
rt

s 
C

e
n
te

r, 
St

ri
ke

fo
rc

e
D

ru
m

lin
e
, a

n
d
 

T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

7

91

0123456789



O
T

H
E
R

 A
C

C
O

M
P
L
IS

H
M

E
N

T
S


C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

h
e
 “

D
iv

e
rs

it
y 

C
o
rn

e
r”

 a
rt

ic
le

s 
fo

r 

M
-N

C
P
P
C

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s 

in
 t

h
e
 U

p
d
a
te


Is

su
e
d
 p

o
st

-e
ve

n
t 

e
va

lu
at

io
n
s 

to
 g

au
ge

 i
m

p
ac

t 

o
f 
D

iv
e
rs

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
ac

ti
vi

ti
e
s


H

e
ld

 t
h
e
 2

n
d

D
iv

e
rs

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
n
e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
ri

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

T
H

E
 D

IV
E
R

SI
T

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

8

92

0123456789



2
0
1
6
 –

2
0
1
8
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

T
a
sk

/A
c
ti

o
n

 I
te

m

✓
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it

h
 D

e
p

a
r
tm

e
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 C
h

a
ir

s 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 m
e
e
t 

an
d
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 P

la
n
n
in

g 
B

o
ar

d
 C

h
ai

rs
 a

n
d
 D

ir
e
ct

o
rs

 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
 i
n
p
u
t 

o
n
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 w

o
rk

 

p
ro

gr
am

 a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
ve

s

D
ra

ft
 p

o
li
c
y
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s 

to
 a

c
c
u

m
u

la
te

 a
 c

e
r
ta

in
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

R
e
se

ar
ch

, d
is

cu
ss

, d
e
ve

lo
p
 a

n
d
 e

va
lu

at
e
 p

o
lic

y 
fo

r 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

va
l

✓
E

st
a
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
o

n
si

st
e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s

▪
D

e
ve

lo
p
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

rt
ic

le
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

m
p
lo

ye
e
 n

e
w

sl
e
tt

e
r, 

U
P
D

A
T

E
 

▪
D

e
ve

lo
p
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
 “

Y
e
ar

 i
n
 R

e
vi

e
w

” 
R

e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
C

o
u
n
ci

l 
ac

co
m

p
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

93

0123456789



2
0
1
6
 –

2
0
1
8
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

T
a
sk

/A
c
ti

o
n

 I
te

m

✓
D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

▪
D

e
ve

lo
p
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
al

 r
ac

k
 c

ar
d
 f
o
r 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

ye
e
s 

as
 c

o
n
st

an
t 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
an

d
 i
ts

 

m
is

si
o
n

▪
D

e
si

gn
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
al

 r
o
vi

n
g 

b
an

n
e
r 

fo
r 

p
la

ce
m

e
n
t 

in
 w

o
rk

 s
it
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

an
d
 e

ve
n
ts

▪
P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
te

rn
al

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

p
ro

gr
am

s

✓
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
 s

u
r
v
e
y
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 i

n
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g
 c

o
re

 v
a
lu

e
s 

o
f 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

si
o

n

P
re

p
ar

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

 s
u
rv

e
y 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
 f
o
r 

an
al

yz
in

g 
an

d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g 

re
su

lt
s 

to
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 e

m
p
lo

ye
e
s 

at
 t

h
e
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 o

n
 M

ay
 3

, 2
0
1
7

✓
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

D
e
ve

lo
p
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 a

n
d
 p

u
rp

o
se

fu
l 
o
ri

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
m

is
si

o
n
, r

o
le

s,
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s 

an
d
 

re
vi

e
w

 o
f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
m

an
u
al

  
 

94

0123456789



Q
U

E
ST

IO
N

S
? 

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S.

 T
H

A
N

K
 Y

O
U

!

1
1

95

0123456789



96

0123456789



ITEM 6e

97

0123456789



98

0123456789



  

A
tt

ac
h

m
e

n
t 

A
 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

C
h

ar
t 

o
f 

K
e

y 
A

m
en

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
5

-7
0A

, F
in

a
n

ci
a

l D
is

cl
o

su
re

 
 

P
o

lic
y 

Se
ct

io
n

 
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

P
o

lic
y 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s  
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

: 
 P

o
lic

y 
[S

ta
te

m
en

t]
 

 (S
ee

: D
ra

ft
, p

g.
 3

) 
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 

em
p

h
as

iz
es

 t
h

e 
M

-N
C

P
P

C
’s

 

co
m

m
it

m
en

t 
to

 p
u

b
lic

 a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

an
d

 t
ra

n
sp

ar
en

cy
. 

Th
e 

st
at

em
en

t 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 e
xp

an
d

ed
 t

o
 r

em
in

d
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
s 

th
at

 n
o

tw
it

h
st

an
d

in
g 

th
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 in
d

iv
id

u
al

s 
ar

e 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 

an
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
u

tl
in

ed
 in

 o
th

er
 a

p
p

lic
ab

le
 e

th
ic

s 
st

an
d

ar
d

s 
an

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s.

 

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

:  
 Fi

n
an

ci
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

 
R

e
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ea

d
s 

&
 

Id
en

ti
fi

ed
 M

-N
C

P
P

C
 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
 (S

ee
: D

ra
ft

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
5

-
7

0
A

, §
 II

(A
)(

2
),

 p
g.

 7
) 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
o

lic
y 

lis
ts

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 

em
p

lo
ye

e 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

lik
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

h
ea

d
s 

an
d

 o
th

er
 s

en
io

r-
le

ve
l p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 f

ile
 a

n
n

u
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

d
is

cl
o

su
re

s.
 

Th
e 

lis
t 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 e

xp
an

d
ed

 t
o

 in
cl

u
d

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

th
at

 m
u

st
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y 
fi

le
 d

u
e 

th
ei

r 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
o

r 
p

o
lic

y 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

 a
re

as
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t/
co

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g,

 a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g 
gr

an
ts

/s
u

b
si

d
ie

s,
 o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g.
   

P
le

as
e 

N
o

te
: M

o
st

 a
d

d
ed

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
ar

e
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

b
ei

n
g 

as
ke

d
 t

o
 f

ile
, a

n
d

 a
re

 a
n

al
o

go
u

s 
to

 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 f
ile

 in
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
ge

n
ci

es
.  

Th
es

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

ar
e

: 

•
 

D
ep

u
ty

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
e

ad
 le

ve
l p

o
si

ti
o

n
s;

 

•
 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
G

en
er

al
 a

n
d

 In
sp

ec
to

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

O
IG

; 

•
 

Th
e 

C
h

ie
f 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 O
ff

ic
er

; 

•
 

D
iv

is
io

n
 C

h
ie

fs
; 

•
 

A
tt

o
rn

ey
s;

 a
n

d
 

•
 

R
is

k 
an

d
 P

o
lic

y 
M

an
ag

er
s.

 

 

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

: 
 O

th
er

 M
-N

C
P

P
C

 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

W
h

ic
h

 M
ay

 
B

e 
D

es
ig

n
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
H

ea
d

s 
 (S

ee
: D

ra
ft

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
5

-
7

0A
, §

 II
(A

)(
3

),
 p

g.
 1

0)
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
o

lic
y 

p
er

m
it

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

H
e

ad
s 

to
 id

en
ti

fy
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
to

 

fi
le

 w
h

en
 h

e/
sh

e 
b

el
ie

ve
s 

th
e 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 

si
gn

if
ic

an
tl

y 
in

fl
u

en
ce

s 
M

-N
C

P
P

C
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

: 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g 

•
 

B
u

d
ge

t,
  

•
 

Fi
n

an
ce

,  

•
 

La
n

d
 u

se
, o

r 
 

•
 

La
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

. 

Th
e 

lis
t 

o
f 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 w

h
ic

h
 t

ri
gg

er
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
 f

ili
n

g 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 c
la

ri
fi

ed
.  

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
e

ad
s 

w
ill

 d
es

ig
n

at
e 

an
y 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

tl
y 

in
fl

u
en

ce
s 

M
-N

C
P

P
C

 

ac
ti

o
n

s,
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 d
ec

is
io

n
s 

o
r 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s,

 p
er

ta
in

in
g 

to
: 

•
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
o

r 
co

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g;

  

•
 

A
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g 
gr

an
ts

 o
r 

su
b

si
d

ie
s;

 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g 

(o
r 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

re
gu

la
ti

n
g 

la
n

d
 u

se
) 

o
r 

zo
n

in
g;

 

•
 

P
o

lic
y 

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g 

d
ec

is
io

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 im
p

ac
t 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

te
re

st
(s

) 
o

f 
th

ir
d

-p
ar

ti
es

. 

•
 

La
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

s 
o

r 
d

is
p

o
si

ti
o

n
s,

 la
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 f

ac
ili

ty
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
o

f 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 a
ss

et
s,

 w
h

et
h

er
 o

w
n

ed
 o

r 
m

an
ag

ed
; o

r 

•
 

O
th

er
 d

ec
is

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 im

p
ac

t.
 

 

D
es

ig
n

at
ed

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
u

d
e 

th
o

se
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

ss
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 s
er

ve
 o

n
 a

 b
o

ar
d

 o
r 

fo
u

n
d

at
io

n
, i

n
 t

h
ei

r 
o

ff
ic

ia
l c

ap
ac

it
y 

as
 a

 M
-N

C
P

P
C

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e,

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

n
at

u
re

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
w

o
rk

 a
ss

ig
n

m
en

t.
   

99

0123456789



  

P
o

lic
y 

Se
ct

io
n

 
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

P
o

lic
y 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s  
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 

N
ew

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 b

y 
D

ep
t.

 H
ea

d
s:

 
 Fi

lin
g 

b
y 

D
es

ig
n

at
ed

 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

at
 T

im
e 

o
f 

H
ir

e 
an

d
 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n

; a
n

d
 f

o
r 

A
ct

in
g 

A
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
ts

 
La

st
in

g 
60

+ 
D

ay
s 

 (S
ee

: D
ra

ft
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

5
-

7
0A

, §
 II

(B
),

 p
g.

 1
2

) 

C
u

rr
en

t 
p

o
lic

y 
d

o
es

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 M
-N

C
P

P
C

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
to

 f
ile

 a
 F

in
an

ci
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

 

St
at

em
en

ts
 a

t 
ti

m
e 

o
f 

h
ir

e 
o

r 
at

 

te
rm

in
at

io
n

.  
It

 a
ls

o
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
ad

d
re

ss
 

fi
lin

g 
o

f 
d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

b
y 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

s 
in

 a
n

 

ac
ti

n
g 

ca
p

ac
it

y 
fo

r 
a 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
o

u
ld

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 f

ile
 a

 

d
is

cl
o

su
re

.  

•
 

A
d

d
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

D
es

ig
n

at
ed

 M
-N

C
P

P
C

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
to

 F
ile

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

D
is

cl
o

su
re

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

at
 T

im
e 

o
f 

H
ir

e 
an

d
 a

t 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
 

Th
is

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
p

er
ta

in
s 

to
 M

-N
C

P
P

C
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

an
d

 a
ll 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ea

d
s.

  I
f 

D
is

cl
o

su
re

 is
 n

o
t 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 a
t 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
se

p
ar

at
io

n
, t

h
e 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

’s
 f

in
al

 p
ay

 

ch
ec

k 
m

ay
 b

e 
w

it
h

h
el

d
, i

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
ci

rc
u

m
st

an
ce

s.
  P

le
a

se
 n

o
te

: 
th

is
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 

ap
p

ly
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s,
 a

s 
th

ey
 h

av
e

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 t
o

 c
o

n
fo

rm
 w

it
h

 S
ta

te
 

la
w

.  
 

 

•
 

A
d

d
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

Fi
lin

g 
o

f 
D

is
cl

o
su

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
b

y 
M

-N
C

P
P

C
 E

m
p

lo
ye

es
 

D
es

ig
n

at
ed

 t
o

 S
er

ve
 in

 a
n

 A
ct

in
g 

C
ap

ac
it

y:
 A

n
y 

em
p

lo
ye

e 
ap

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 a

 d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
6

0 
d

ay
s 

o
r 

m
o

re
 m

u
st

 f
ile

 a
 F

in
an

ci
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

w
it

h
in

 3
0

 

d
ay

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

ap
p

o
in

tm
en

t.
 

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

: 
 Fi

n
an

ci
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

 
R

e
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

 (S
ee

: D
ra

ft
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

5
-

7
0A

, §
 II

I(
A

),
 p

g.
 1

4)
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
o

lic
y 

st
at

es
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

m
u

st
 f

ile
 t

h
ei

r 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 

D
is

cl
o

su
re

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
n

 o
r 

b
ef

o
re

 A
p

ri
l 

1
5

th
 o

f 
ea

ch
 y

e
ar

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 

en
ti

ti
es

: 

•
 

St
at

e 
Et

h
ic

s 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
; 

 

•
 

Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 D

ir
ec

to
r;

 a
n

d
  

•
 

C
h

ie
f 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
O

ff
ic

er
 o

f 

th
ei

r 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 c
o

u
n

ty
. 

 

In
co

rp
o

ra
te

 S
ta

te
 la

w
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 f
ili

n
gs

 b
y 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s.

 

P
le

as
e 

n
o

te
 t

h
e 

fi
rs

t 
tw

o
 b

u
lle

ts
 h

av
e

 b
ee

n
 in

 p
la

ce
 f

o
r 

so
m

e 
ti

m
e,

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

b
ei

n
g 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s.

  T
h

e 
la

st
 it

em
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 m

o
re

 r
ec

en
t 

u
p

d
at

es
 t

o
 S

ta
te

 la
w

.  
 

•
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

sh
al

l f
ile

 t
h

ei
r 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 D

is
cl

o
su

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
el

ec
tr

o
n

ic
al

ly
 w

it
h

 

th
e 

St
at

e 
Et

h
ic

s 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 b

y 
A

p
ri

l 3
0

th
 o

f 
ea

ch
 y

e
ar

. 
 

•
 

Ea
ch

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
 is

 t
o

 s
en

d
 a

 c
o

p
y 

o
f 

th
e 

el
ec

tr
o

n
ic

al
ly

 f
ile

d
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
D

is
cl

o
su

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
to

 t
h

e 
C

h
ie

f 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

O
ff

ic
er

 o
f 

th
e 

co
u

n
ty

 f
ro

m
 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 is
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

. 
 

In
 M

o
n

tg
o

m
er

y 
C

o
u

n
ty

 O
n

ly
, e

ac
h

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
 m

u
st

 a
ls

o
 s

u
b

m
it

 a
 c

o
p

y 
o

f 
th

e 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

s 
St

at
em

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l. 
(R

e
q

u
ir

em
en

t 
d

o
es

 n
o

t 
ex

is
t 

fo
r 

P
ri

n
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s 
C

o
u

n
ty

) 

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

: 
 Fi

lin
g 

fo
r 

N
ew

ly
 

A
p

p
o

in
te

d
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

an
d

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

Le
av

in
g 

O
ff

ic
e 

(S
ee

: D
ra

ft
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

5
-

7
0A

, §
 II

I(
B

),
 p

g.
 1

5
) 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
o

lic
y 

d
o

es
 n

o
t 

ad
d

re
ss

 t
h

e 

St
at

e 
la

w
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 p
er

ta
in

in
g 

to
 

fi
lin

g 
b

y 
n

ew
ly

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s,

 a
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 le

av
in

g 
th

ei
r 

O
ff

ic
e.

 

 R
e

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 e
m

b
ed

d
ed

.  
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
, t

h
e 

p
o

lic
y 

cl
ar

if
ie

s 
th

at
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
s 

fo
rw

ar
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Ex

ec
u

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
a 

co
p

y 
o

f 
th

e 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

 

St
at

em
en

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

: 

 •
 

D
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 (

3
0

-d
ay

 w
in

d
o

w
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

);
 a

n
d

 

 

•
 

A
t 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
o

f 
le

av
in

g 
O

ff
ic

e 
(6

0
-d

ay
 w

in
d

o
w

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
).

 

100

0123456789



Page 1 of 18 
 

Attachment B 

Proposed Amendments to  1 

Administrative Practice 5-70A, Financial Disclosure 2 

      3 

Key to Policy Amendments  

Grey Highlights:  Proposed amendments. 

Strikeout:  Proposed deletions. 

Italics: Notes to Draft Reviewers. 

 4 

Note to Draft Reviewer: “M-NCPPC” has been substituted for “Commission”, when the intended application is to the 

agency rather than the governing body of the agency. 

 5 

AUTHORITY This Practice was initially approved by the Commission on March 18, 1992.  This Practice was last 6 

amended on [date to be inserted] by the [approving body to be inserted].   7 

  8 

 9 

PURPOSE &  The purpose of this Practice is to ensure compliance with the Maryland Public Ethics Law to  10 

BACKGROUND prevent the potential for conflicts of interest and to communicate the Agency’s commitment to 11 

public accountability.  This Practice establishes specific rules for the disclosure of certain financial 12 

information by Commissioners and designated key Commission M-NCPPC personnel as required 13 

by State Law.  This Practice establishes the individuals who are required to file Financial 14 

Disclosures, with whom the disclosures are required to be filed, and the uses to which the 15 

Financial Disclosures can be put once filed.   16 

 17 

This Practice was initially implemented in 1992, when it replaced, rescinded, and consolidated 18 

This Practice rescinds former Administrative Practices 5-70, Financial Disclosure and 5-71, 19 

Financial Disclosure by Commission Officers, Department Heads, and Certain Other Employees. 20 

 21 

Since its inception, this Practice has been amended as follows: 22 

• March 18, 2015:  Updated filing requirements for Commissioners to file online with the 23 

State Ethics Commission and send two (2) printed copies to the Executive Director’s Office. 24 

• [date to be inserted]:  Updated to clarify filing requirements for those positions designated 25 

to file Financial Disclosure Statements, and incorporate other minor amendments and 26 

clarifications. 27 

 28 

 29 

REFERENCES  General Provisions Article 40A, Section 6-203, Title 5, Maryland Public Ethics Law, Subtitle 30 

6, Financial Disclosure, Annotated Code of Maryland;  31 

• Division II, Land Use Article, Article 28, Section 2-115, Annotated Code of Maryland;  32 

• Relevant Conflict of Interest provisions include the following:   33 

• M-NCPPC Administrative Practice 2-14, “Non-Commission Employment,”  34 

• M-NCPPC Administrative Practice 2-24, Ethics 35 

• M-NCPPC Administrative Practice 2-72, “Conditions for Acceptance of Awards from Outside 36 

the Commission,”  37 

• M-NCPPC Administrative Practice 4- 10, “Purchasing,” and  38 

101

0123456789



Page 2 of 18 
 

• Merit System Rules & Regulations, Chapter 1900 (Workplace Conduct and Discipline) 1625 1 

and 1629.   2 

• State of Maryland, State Ethics Commission, Financial Disclosure Form. 3 

 4 

 5 

APPLICATION This Practice applies to all Commissioners positions as described in this policy. Department 6 

Heads and High Level Management listed herein any employee required by his or her 7 

Department Head to file a Financial Disclosure and any other employee, whether required to 8 

file or not, who has an actual or perceived conflict of interest. (Note to Draft Reviewer: Text 9 

has been stricken as new language summarizes these positions more succinctly.) 10 

 11 

Note to Draft Reviewer: The Definitions section has been moved up from its previous placement, to standardize 12 

formatting with other agency policies. 13 

 14 

DEFINITIONS  15 

 For the purposes of this Practice, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 16 

 17 

The Commission:  The governing body of the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 18 

Commission, which is comprised of five members from each of the agency’s two Planning 19 

Boards for Montgomery County and Prince George’s County.  20 

 21 

Commissioners:  Members of the Commission. 22 

 23 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission:  The organizational entity.  For 24 

purposes of this Practice, the terms “M-NCPPC” or “agency” shall be used to reference the 25 

organizational entity. 26 

 27 

The Maryland State Ethics Commission:  A 5-member Commission composed of private 28 

citizens who are appointed by the Governor and responsible for administering the Maryland 29 

Public Ethics Law with respect to all State officials.  The State Ethics Commission oversees the 30 

Maryland State Financial Disclosure system and issues the Financial Disclosure Statement forms 31 

which are utilized by this agency. 32 

 33 

(1)  Conflict of Interest: Shall include any circumstances which interfere with, appear to 34 

interfere with, or have the potential to interfere with, the impartiality and independent 35 

judgment of a Commissioner, Appointed Officer, Department Head, or employee. (See also: 36 

Maryland Code, Land Use Art., § 15-120, et seq.; and Maryland Code, General Provisions Art., 37 

§§ 5-501 and 5-502).  38 

 39 

(2) Financial Interest means the following  40 

 41 

• (1)   Ownership of any interest as the result of which the owner has received within the past 42 

three years, or is presently receiving, or in the future is entitled to receive, more than 43 

$1,000 per year. 44 

102

0123456789



Page 3 of 18 
 

 1 

• (2) Ownership, or the ownership of securities of any kind representing or convertible into 2 

ownership, of more than 3 percent of a business entity. 3 

 4 

(3)  Immediate Family shall mean the spouse, parent, brother, sister, and children of an 5 

individual required to file under this practice. 6 

 7 

(4)   Financial Disclosure Statement: shall mean a financial disclosure statement prepared on The 8 

form provided completed annually to meet the requirements of this policy. by the Office of the 9 

Executive Director.  It shall be available for public inspection if requested, under the Maryland 10 

Public Information Act. (Note to Draft Reviewer: this definition has been reworded for clarity, 11 

and the last sentence was stricken as it is covered under Section III, Maintenance of Financial 12 

Disclosure Records). 13 

 14 

 15 

POLICY The Commission, Consistent with the Maryland Public Ethics Law and our commitment to 16 

public accountability, the M-NCPPC along with the State of Maryland and Montgomery and 17 

Prince George’s Counties, recognizes that our system of representative government is 18 

dependent in part upon the public maintaining the highest trust in their public officials and 19 

employees, and that the public have a right to know and be assured that the impartiality and 20 

independent judgment of people public officials and employees will be maintained.  To help 21 

ensure accountability and awareness of conflicts of interest, this Practice outlines the 22 

requirements for completion of Financial Disclosure Statements by individuals whose 23 

employment or office puts them in a position of influencing decisions that might benefit parties 24 

doing business with, or seeking approval from, the M-NCPPC. (Note to Draft Reviewer: The 25 

preceding sentence incorporates existing provisions which have been reorganized.) 26 

 27 

 Notwithstanding the requirements of this Practice, individuals are expected to comply with 28 

responsibilities and requirements outlined in other applicable ethics standards and policies. 29 

 30 

 31 

CONSTRUCTION The Commission M-NCPPC intends that this Practice to be liberally construed to accomplish its 32 

purpose.  The requirements of the this Practice shall in all respects be consistent with and no 33 

less stringent than the standards and requirements of the Maryland Public Ethics Law, General 34 

Provisions Article, Title 5; and Article 40A and Article 28 of the Division II of the Land Use 35 

Article, Annotated Code of Maryland. Therefore, this Practice should be construed in favor of 36 

disclosure. If there is any question as to whether or not an item is required to be disclosed, 37 

individuals the Commissioner or employee, as a matter of course, should include the item in 38 

their required Financial Disclosure Statement. 39 

 40 

  41 

103

0123456789



Page 4 of 18 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 1 

 2 

I.  Financial Disclosure Requirements Generally  .................................................................................................................5 3 

 4 

II.  Financial Disclosure Requirements for Designated M-NCPPC Positions  .......................................................................7 5 

A. Designated M-NCPPC Positions  ....................................................................................................................... 7 6 

1. Appointed Officers ...................................................................................................................................................7 7 

2. Department Heads and Identified Positions ............................................................................................................7 8 

3. Other Positions Which May Be Designated by the Department Head ................................................................. 10 9 

B. Required Filings for New Hires/Appointees, for Individuals Serving in Acting Positions, & Upon Termination ... 12 10 

1. Newly-Hired/Appointed Individuals Holding Designated M-NCPPC Positions  .................................................... 12 11 

2. Individuals Assigned to Serve in an Acting Role for 60 Days or More ................................................................... 12 12 

3.  Individuals Leaving Designated M-NCPPC Positions ............................................................................................ 12 13 

 C. Ongoing Obligations to Disclose Conflicts of Interest  ....................................................................................... 13 14 

1.  Appointed Officers and Department Heads  ........................................................................................................ 13 15 

2.  All Other Employees Required to File Disclosures ............................................................................................... 13 16 

 D. Enforcement .................................................................................................................................................. 13 17 

 18 
III. Financial Disclosure Requirements for Commissioners  ....................................................................................... 14 19 

A. Requirements for Filing Annual Financial Disclosure Statements by Commissioners......................................... 14 20 

B. Required Filings for Newly Appointed Commissioners and Commissioners Leaving Office  ............................... 15 21 

1. Newly Appointed Commissioners ......................................................................................................................... 15 22 

2. Commissioners Leaving Office .............................................................................................................................. 16 23 

    C. Ongoing Obligations to Disclose Conflicts of Interest by Commissioners  ......................................................... 16 24 

D.  Enforcement  ................................................................................................................................................ 16 25 

IV. Financial Disclosure Requirements for Designated ERS Positions  ........................................................................ 16 26 

 27 

V.  Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records ..................................................................................................... 17 28 

A.  Availability for Review .................................................................................................................................. 17 29 

B.  Preservation of Records  ................................................................................................................................ 17 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

104

0123456789



Page 5 of 18 
 

 1 

I. Financial Disclosure Requirements Generally  2 

This Practice identifies positions which must complete Financial Disclosure Statements. Specific 3 

requirements on timing and submission of disclosures are outlined in the relevant sections below.   4 

 5 

• Financial Disclosure Statements cover the calendar year immediately preceding the year of filing.   6 

 7 

• Every employee listed herein and every Commissioner shall complete a Financial Disclosure Statement 8 

on or before April 15th of each year on forms provided by the Executive Director. (Note to Draft 9 

Reviewer: Deleted text has been incorporated in the relevant sections on filing requirements.) 10 

 11 

• The Executive Director shall issue instructions on the filling of annual Financial Disclosure Statements 12 

make appropriate forms available no later than thirty days prior to the filing deadline of each year.   13 

 14 

• The Financial Disclosure Statement for employees shall require disclosure of information and interests, 15 

if known, for the applicable period pertaining to: 16 

 17 

o Interests in real property; 18 

 19 

o Interests in corporations and partnerships; 20 

 21 

o Interests in business entities doing business with the State, the M-NCPPC, Montgomery County, or 22 

Prince George’s County; 23 

 24 

o Gifts; 25 

 26 

o Employment by or interest in businesses entities doing business with the State, the M-NCPPC, 27 

Montgomery County, or Prince George’s County; 28 

 29 

o Indebtedness to entity doing business with the State, the M-NCPPC, Montgomery County, or 30 

Prince George’s County; 31 

 32 

o Family members employed by the State, the M-NCPPC, Montgomery County, or Prince George’s 33 

County; and 34 

 35 

o Sources of earned income. 36 

 37 

• All Financial Disclosures are to be available for public inspection upon request. See: Section III, 38 

Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records.   39 

 40 

• The filing of Financial Disclosure Statements does not relieve employees from other applicable 41 

disclosures which may exist including, but not limited to:  42 

 43 

o The receipt of certain gifts pursuant to Administrative Practice 2-24, Ethics (Gifts)  44 

105

0123456789



Page 6 of 18 
 

 1 

o Outside employment and participation in Non-Commission business pursuant to Administrative 2 

Practice 2-14, Non-Commission Employment and Non-Commission Business. 3 

 4 

(Note to Draft Reviewer: The following deleted text has been incorporated within the Section titled, 5 

Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records, below.) The Executive Director shall maintain a list of the 6 

name and home and business addresses of all persons examining or copying such statements, as well as the 7 

name of the person whose statement was examined.  8 

 9 

(Note to Draft Reviewer: The following sentence has been moved to the opening Policy statement, above.) 10 

The purpose of this Practice is to provide a method for oversight of Commissioners and Commission 11 

employees whose employment puts them in a position of influencing decisions that might benefit 12 

individuals doing business with the Commission or seeking approval from the Commission.  13 

 14 

(Note to Draft Reviewer: The following text has been incorporated in Section III, Financial Disclosure 15 

Requirements for Commissioners, below.) 16 

 17 

WHO MUST FILE 18 

NOTE: Based on discussion during the March 18, 2015 Commission meeting, Commissioners are directed to 19 

complete a Financial Disclosure Form as provided online annually by the State Ethics Commission, and send 20 

two printed copies of their Form to the Executive Director’s Office. The Executive Director’s Office will 21 

forward the form to the Chief Administrative Officer for the respective County, and keep a copy for M-22 

NCPPC records.   23 

 24 

 25 

 26 

 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

106

0123456789



Page 7 of 18 
 

 1 

II. Financial Disclosure Requirements for Designated M-NCPPC Positions 2 

 3 

A. Designated M-NCPPC Positions Officers, Department Heads, and High-Level Management  4 

The following individuals must complete a Financial Disclosure Statement Form as provided annually by 5 

the Executive Director: 6 

 7 

1. Appointed Officers 8 

Appointed Officers of the M-NCPPC include the Executive Director, Secretary-Treasurer, General 9 

Counsel. 10 

 11 

• In addition to filing with the Executive Director, All Appointed Officers and the Assistant Executive 12 

Director shall file their completed Financial Disclosure Statement Forms with the Chairman of the 13 

Commission Chair by April 30th of each year. (Note to Draft Reviewer: Text has been moved from 14 

its prior placement at the end of the new subsection A(2), below.) 15 

 16 

• The Secretary-Treasurer and General Counsel shall also forward a copy of their completed Financial 17 

Disclosure Statement to the Executive Director by April 30th. 18 

 19 

• Executive Director 20 

• Secretary-Treasurer 21 

• General Counsel 22 

 23 

2. Department Heads and Identified Positions 24 

The following positions shall file a Financial Disclosure Statement with the Executive Director by April 25 

30th of each year: 26 

Recommended Clarification on Positions Required to File Financial Disclosure Statements 
Department Heads were asked to consider whether the existing list of positions should be expanded based on 
the types of duties typically carried out.   
 
Department Heads’ Recommended: 
Department Heads recommend adding the following positions for required filers of financial disclosures.  Many 
of these positions already complete a disclosure and are consistent with positions typically required to file in 
County and State agencies. 

 
a. Deputy Department Head level positions, 
b. Inspector General and Inspectors within the OIG,  
c. The Chief Information Officer. 
d. Division Chiefs, 
e. Attorneys,  
f. Risk and Policy Managers, and 
g. Any position which makes policy or planning decisions which impact the financial interest(s) of third-

parties.   
 

The Executive Committee supported the recommendation. 

107

0123456789



Page 8 of 18 
 

 1 

• Department Heads and Deputy-Department Heads including: 2 

o Assistant Executive Director 3 

 4 

o Director of Planning, Montgomery County 5 

 6 

o Deputy Director(s) of Planning, Montgomery County 7 

 8 

o Director of Planning, Prince George’s County 9 

 10 

o Deputy Director(s) of Planning, Prince George’s County 11 

 12 

o Director of Parks and Recreation, Prince George’s County 13 

 14 

o Deputy Director(s) of Parks and Recreation, Prince George’s County 15 

 16 

o Associate Director(s) of Parks and Recreation, Prince George’s County 17 

 18 

o Director of Parks, Montgomery County 19 

 20 

o Deputy Director(s) of Parks, Montgomery County 21 

 22 

o Associate Director(s) of Parks, Montgomery County 23 

 24 

• Inspector General and Inspectors within the Office of the Inspector General 25 

 26 

• Chief Information Officer  27 

 28 

• Attorneys (as designated by the General Counsel) 29 

 30 

• Division Chiefs 31 

 32 

• Finance Manager (Audit) (Note to Draft Reviewer: The Audit Finance Manager has been absorbed 33 

by the Office of the Inspector General.) 34 

 35 

• Corporate Policy Manager 36 

 37 

• Risk Manager  38 

 39 

Completed Financial Disclosure Statements for these individuals must be filed with the Executive 40 

Director on or before April 15th of each year.  In addition to filing with the Executive Director, all Officers 41 

and the Assistant Executive Director shall file their completed Financial Disclosure Statements with the 42 

Chairman of the Commission. (Note to Draft Reviewer: The paragraph immediately preceding has been 43 

stricken and incorporated into Section II(A)(1), Appointed Officers, above.) 44 

108

0123456789



Page 9 of 18 
 

Note to Draft Reviewer: The following section has been moved to new Section IV, below. 1 

 2 

Employees’ Retirement System   3 

The following individuals shall complete a Financial Disclosure Form as provided annually by the Executive 4 

Director: 5 

 6 

• Retirement System Administrator 7 

 8 

• Voting members of the M-NCPPC Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees 9 

 10 

• Any other employee of the M-NCPPC Employee’s Retirement System who, in the opinion of the 11 

Retirement System Administrator, is in a position to significantly influence any financial decision of the 12 

Employees’ Retirement System 13 

 14 

Completed Financial Disclosure Forms for these individuals must be filed with the Chairman and the 15 

Executive Director on or before April 15thof each year. 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

 26 

 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

109

0123456789



Page 10 of 18 
 

3. Other Positions Which May Be Designated by the Department Head  1 

Employees Required to File Annually 2 

Employees whose position, Certain positions may be designated by the Department Head as required 3 

to file Financial Disclosure Statements.  These positions are those which in the opinion of the 4 

Department Head, significantly influences M-NCPPC Commission actions through decisions or policy 5 

recommendations, pertaining to: budget, finance, land use, or land acquisition:  6 

 7 

• Procurement or contracting;  8 

 9 

• Administering grants or subsidies; 10 

 11 

• Planning, zoning or otherwise regulating land use; 12 

 13 

• Policy or planning decisions which impact the financial interest(s) of third-parties.  (Note to 14 

Draft Reviewer: Provision was updated with input from Legal.) 15 

 16 

• Land acquisitions or dispositions, land development and facility planning of Commission assets, 17 

whether owned or managed; or 18 

(Note to Draft Reviewer: Provision was updated with input from Legal.) 19 

 20 

Recommended Clarification on Other Positions Which May be Designated by the Department Heads as 

Required to File Financial Disclosure Statements 

Department Heads were asked to consider adding additional language to the responsibilities which trigger 

an employee to file a Financial Disclosure Statement. 

Department Heads’ Recommended: 
Department Head’s recommended clarifying responsibilities which trigger the financial disclosure an employee 

to file a Financial Disclosure Statement as follows:  

 

Department Heads will designate any position which significantly influences M-NCPPC actions, through decisions 

or recommendations, pertaining to: 

• Procurement or contracting;  

• Administering grants or subsidies; 

• Planning (or otherwise regulating land use) or zoning; 

• Policy or planning decisions which impact the financial interest(s) of third-parties. 

• Land acquisitions or dispositions, land development and facility planning of Commission assets, whether 

owned or managed; or 

• Other decisions with significant economic impact. 
 

Designated positions may include those which are assigned to serve on a board or foundation, in their official 
capacity as a M-NCPPC employee, because of the nature of their work assignment.   

 
The Executive Committee supported the recommendation. 

110

0123456789



Page 11 of 18 
 

• Other decisions with significant economic impact. 1 

 2 

Designated positions may include those which are assigned to serve on a board or foundation, in their 3 

official capacity as an Commission employee.  (Note: Notwithstanding the requirements of this 4 

Practice, an employee who serves on external boards or foundations, which are not related to their 5 

official capacity as a Commission employee, may still be required to disclose such activity, pursuant to 6 

Administrative Practice 2-14, Non-Commission Employment and Non-Commission Business.) 7 

 8 

Individuals holding such designated positions shall file must also complete a Financial Disclosure 9 

Statement Form as provided annually by the Executive Director with their Department Head, by April 10 

30th of each year. 11 

 12 

Completed Financial Disclosure Forms for these individuals must be filed with the employee’s 13 

Department Head on or before April 15 of each year. 14 

 15 

Each Department Head shall submit to the Executive Director within five (5) business days following on 16 

or before April 30th of each year:  17 

 18 

• A list of the employees who have submitted the required Financial Disclosures on file, as well as 19 

 20 

• A list of employees those from whom s/he has requested, but who have not submitted their 21 

completed received Financial Disclosure Statement Forms.   22 

 23 

Employees’ Retirement System  (Note to Draft Reviewer: Content has been moved to a new section - 24 

Section IV, Financial Disclosure Requirements for Designated Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) Positions 25 

- below.) 26 

The following individuals shall complete a Financial Disclosure Form as provided annually by the Executive 27 

Director: 28 

 29 

• Retirement System Administrator 30 

 31 

• Voting members of the M-NCPPC Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees 32 

 33 

• Any other employee of the M-NCPPC Employee’s Retirement System who, in the opinion of the 34 

Retirement System Administrator, is in a position to significantly influence any financial decision of the 35 

Employees’ Retirement System 36 

 37 

Completed Financial Disclosure Forms for these individuals must be filed with the  Chairman and the 38 

Executive Director on or before April 15thof each year. 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

111

0123456789



Page 12 of 18 
 

 1 
 2 

B.   Required Filings for New Hires/Appointees, for Individuals Serving in Acting Positions, and Upon 3 

Termination 4 

 5 

1. Newly-Hired/Appointed Individuals Holding Designated M-NCPPC Positions 6 

Any newly-hired/appointed individual holding an M-NCPPC position designated as having to file a 7 

Financial Disclosure Statement pursuant to subsections I(B), above, shall file the statement with the 8 

appropriate office at the time of hire.  This requirement shall be included in job advertisement, and 9 

communicated and monitored, by the hiring department. 10 

 11 

2. Individuals Assigned to Serve in an Acting Role for 60 Days or More 12 

Individuals placed in an acting role for an M-NCPPC position otherwise required to file a Financial 13 

Disclosure Statement pursuant to subsections I(B), shall file a Financial Disclosure Statement, when 14 

their acting assignment is anticipated to last 60 days or greater.  The individual shall submit the 15 

completed Financial Disclosure Statement within 30 days of the acting assignment.   16 

 17 

3. Individuals Leaving Designated M-NCPPC Positions 18 

Any individual who leaves a position required to file a Financial Disclosure Statement pursuant to 19 

subsections I(B), above, shall file the statement with the appropriate office during the close-out 20 

process, prior to separation.  Failure to file a required disclosure form upon separation may result in 21 

the delay or withholding of a final paycheck in appropriate circumstances.  This requirement shall be 22 

Recommended New Requirement on Filing by Designated Positions at Time of Hire/Termination; and 

for Acting Assignments Lasting 60-+ Days 

Department Heads were asked to consider additional language to address the filing of Financial 

Disclosure Statements by designated positions at the time of hire and termination; and for individual 

acting in a covered position or 60 or more days. 

Department Heads’ Recommended: 
Department Heads supported the following amendments: 
 
• Add Requirement for Designated M-NCPPC Employee Positions to File Financial Disclosure Statement at 

Time of Hire and at Termination 

This requirement pertains to M-NCPPC employees and all Department Heads.  If Disclosure is not 

completed at the time of separation, Department Heads recommended the individual’s final pay check 

may be withheld, except in extenuating circumstances; however, the language was later modified to 

state the final paycheck may be withheld in appropriate circumstances. 

 

Please note: this does not apply to Commissioners, as they have separate requirements to conform with 

State law.   

 

• Add Requirement for Filing of Disclosure Statement by M-NCPPC Employees Designated to Serve in an 
Acting Capacity: Any employee appointed to a designated position for 60 days or more must file a 
Financial Disclosure Statement within 30 days after the appointment. 

 
The Executive Committee supported the recommendation. 

 

112

0123456789



Page 13 of 18 
 

communicated and monitored by the hiring department. 1 

 2 

All Other Employees - Any employee, whether s/he has filed a financial disclosure or not, has an 3 

ongoing responsibility to guard against real or perceived conflicts of interest and must immediately 4 

report any real or potential conflict to the Department Head. (Note to Draft Reviewer: Subsection has 5 

been removed as it is redundant with language found in (II)(D) Ongoing Obligations to Disclose Conflicts 6 

of Interest; All Other Employees.)  7 

 8 

C. Ongoing Obligations to Disclose Conflicts of Interest EMPLOYEE OBLIGATIONS 9 

Conflict of Interest – Designated positions a Commissioner or employee filing a Financial Disclosure 10 

pursuant to this Practice shall have a continuing responsibility to guard against conflicts of interest, 11 

whether real or perceived. 12 

 13 

Filing a Financial Disclosure Statement shall not relieve an individual of the responsibility to immediately 14 

disclose and provide appropriate notification as soon as a situation of actual or potential conflict arises. 15 

(Note to Draft Reviewer: This is not a new concept; has been moved from Section II(C)(2), below.)  16 

 17 

The following procedures shall apply:  18 

 19 

1. Appointed Officers and Department Heads 20 

Appointed Officers and Department Heads shall advise the Chairman of the Commission in writing 21 

whenever a real or potential conflict of interest arises.  The Department Heads shall also advise their 22 

respective Planning Board Chair.  The Commission shall then determine in executive session whether to 23 

permit that individual to continue participation in the matter in question or to require the Appointed 24 

Officer or Department Head to recuse himself or herself from further participation.  The matter’s 25 

resolution shall be placed with the applicable Financial Disclosure Statement Form. 26 

 27 

2. All Other Employees Required to File Disclosures 28 

An employee shall advise his/her Department Head, in writing, whenever she/he believes that such a 29 

conflict of interest may exist or arise.  The filing of the Financial Disclosure statement shall not relieve 30 

the employee of the responsibility to notify the Department Head as soon as a situation of actual or 31 

potential conflict arises.  (Note to Draft Reviewer: The preceding sentence has been stricken and 32 

incorporated into the opening of Section II, Ongoing Obligation to Disclose Conflicts of Interest, above.) 33 

 34 

Once a Department Head has been apprised of a real or potential conflict of interest, the Department 35 

Head shall determine whether that employee may continue to participate in the matter in question or 36 

must excuse him or herself from further participation.  Both the employee’s notification and the 37 

Department Head’s determination shall be included with the Financial Disclosure Statement Form if 38 

applicable, or in a separate file which must be made available for public inspection upon request. 39 

 40 

D.  ENFORCEMENT  41 

Employees - Any employee subject to the provisions of this Practice who is found to have violated its 42 

provisions, either by failure to file or by engaging in prohibited activity is subject to disciplinary action by 43 

his/her supervisor, including termination, suspension with or without pay, or other disciplinary action as 44 

may be warranted. 45 

113

0123456789



Page 14 of 18 
 

 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

 26 

 27 

III.  Financial Disclosure Requirements for Commissioners 28 

 29 

Note: This Section is set forth for the reader’s convenience only as a restatement of the Maryland Code 30 

applicable as of the date this Practice was promulgated.  It shall not be interpreted or deemed to impose any 31 

substantive legal standard, obligation or requirement, and readers are advised accordingly to consult the 32 

Maryland Code directly for a reading of the current law. 33 

 34 

A. Requirements for Filing Annual Financial Disclosure Statements by Commissioners 35 

 36 

All Commissioners must complete a Financial Disclosure Form as provided annually by the Executive Director.  37 

Commissioners’ completed Financial Disclosure Forms shall be sent directly to the following offices on or 38 

before April 15 of each year:  39 

  40 

• The Executive Director 41 

• The State Ethics Commission 42 

• The Chief Administrative Officer of the County from which the Commissioner was appointed. 43 

 44 

Recommended Clarification on State Financial Disclosure Filing Requirements for Commissioners 

Department Heads were asked to consider clarifying language on the Financial Disclosure Statement filing 

requirements for Commissioners to better reflect State ethics law. 

Department Heads’ Recommended: 
Department Heads supported incorporating State law requirements for required filings by Commissioners to 

include: 

 

Please note: The first two bullets have been in place for some time, and are already being followed by 

Commissioners.  The last item is based on more recent updates to State law.   

 

• Commissioners shall file their Financial Disclosure Statement electronically with the State Ethics 

Commission by April 30th of each year. 

 

• Each Commissioner is to send a copy of the electronically filed Financial Disclosure Statement to the 

Chief Administrative Officer of the county from which the Commissioner is appointed. 

 

In Montgomery County Only, each Commissioner must also submit a copy of the Financial Disclosures 

Statement to the County Council. (Requirement does not exist for Prince George’s County) 

 

Department Heads and the Executive Committee supported that the Planning Board Administrators is to 

assist with sending required copies to the appropriate County recipients and Executive Director. 

 
The Executive Committee supported the recommendation. 

 

 

 

114

0123456789



Page 15 of 18 
 

State law requires the following Financial Disclosure submissions by April 30th of each year:  1 

 2 

1. Each Commissioner:  Financial Disclosure Statements must be filed electronically with the State Ethics 3 

Commission.  4 

 5 

2. Each Commissioner:  A printed copy of the filed Disclosure Statement must be submitted to the Chief 6 

Administrative Officer of the County from which the Commissioner is appointed. 7 

 8 

3. For Montgomery County Commissioners only:   A printed copy of the filed Disclosure Statement must be 9 

submitted to the to the Montgomery County Council. 10 

 11 

To assist with filing requirements, each Planning Board administrator shall compile copies of the completed 12 

Financial Disclosure Statements from the respective Commissioners and forward complete sets to comply 13 

with County submissions outlined above.   One additional set shall also be forwarded to the Executive 14 

Director within 5 business days of the April 30th deadline.  15 

 16 

B.  Required Filings for Newly Appointed Commissioners and Commissioners Leaving Office 17 

 18 

1. Newly-Appointed Commissioners 19 

Within 30-days of appointment to a Planning Board position, each Commissioner’s Office is asked to 20 

forward to the Executive Director a copy of the Financial Disclosure Statement which was completed 21 

during the appointment process. 22 

 23 

2. Commissioners Leaving Office 24 

Within 60 days after leaving office, each Commissioner is to file a Financial Disclosure Statement for the 25 

preceding year and any portion of the current calendar year during which the individual held office: 26 

 27 

Recommended Clarification on State Filing Requirements for Newly Appointed Commissioners and 

Commissioners Leaving Office 

Department Heads were asked to consider clarifying language on the Financial Disclosure Statement filing 

requirements for newly appointed Commissioners, and those leaving their Office, to better reflect State ethics 

law. 

Department Heads’ Recommended: 
Department Heads supported incorporating State law requirements for required filings by Commissioners.  

Additionally, the policy clarifies that Commissioners forward to the Executive Director a copy of the Financial 

Disclosure Statement which was completed: 

 

• During the application process (30-day window provided); and 

 

• At the time of leaving Office (60-day window provided). 

 

The Executive Committee supported the proposed amendments. 

115

0123456789



Page 16 of 18 
 

a) Each Commissioner:  Financial Disclosure Statements must be filed electronically with the State Ethics 1 

Commission.  2 

 3 

b) Each Commissioner:  A printed copy of the filed Disclosure Statement must be submitted to the Chief 4 

Administrative Officer of the County from which the Commissioner is appointed. 5 

 6 

c) For Montgomery County Commissioners only:   A printed copy of the filed Disclosure Statement must 7 

be submitted to the to the Montgomery County Council. 8 

 9 

To assist with filing requirements, each Planning Board administrator shall forward completed Financial 10 

Disclosure Statements to comply with County submissions outlined above.  One additional set shall also 11 

be forwarded to the Executive Director within 5 business days of the 60 day-deadline. 12 

 13 

Note to Draft Reviewer: The following section has been amended to ensure consistency with State law and 14 

recognize amendments as they occur. 15 

C.  Ongoing Obligations to Disclose Conflicts of Interest by Commissioners 16 

Conflicts of interest shall be disclosed and handled pursuant to Maryland Code, Land Use Art., § 15-120(g).  17 

 18 

A Commissioner is required by State Law to disclose a conflict of interest in a regular public meeting of the 19 

Commission or the Planning Boards, and that disclosure shall appear in the minutes.  A Commissioner shall 20 

disqualify himself or herself and shall not participate in a decision or act which affects or appears to affect a 21 

financial interest of the Commissioner. 22 

 23 

D. ENFORCEMENT  24 

Commissioners –For Commissioners who fail to file a Financial Disclosure Statement, the State Ethics 25 

Commission may issue a complaint against the Commissioner.  Commissioners are subject to the provisions of 26 

Maryland Code, Land Use Art., § 15-120(h)Section 2-115, Article 28, Annotated Code of Maryland.  The penalty 27 

for violating that section of State Law is a misdemeanor conviction punishable by a fine of not more than 28 

$1,000 or six months in jail, or both, or by suspension from the Commission for not more than six months, or 29 

by outright forfeiture and removal from office, or by any combination of these. 30 

 31 

IV.  Financial Disclosure Requirements for Designated Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) Positions (Note to Draft 32 

Reviewer: Section has been moved from its prior placement, above.) 33 

The following positions shall complete a Financial Disclosure Statement Form as provided annually by the 34 

Executive Director: 35 

 36 

• Retirement System Administrator 37 

 38 

• Voting members of the M-NCPPC Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees 39 

 40 

• Any other employee of the M-NCPPC Employee’s Retirement System who, in the opinion of the 41 

Retirement System Administrator, is in a position to significantly influence any financial decision of the 42 

Employees’ Retirement System 43 

 44 

116

0123456789



Page 17 of 18 
 

Completed Financial Disclosure Statement Forms for these individuals must be filed by April 30th with the 1 

Commission Chairman and the Executive Director on or before April 15thof each year. 2 

 3 

 4 

Note to Draft Reviewer: Section V, titled “Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records,” incorporates the previous 5 

“Records” and “Availability and Filing of Forms” sections. 6 

V. Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records 7 

 8 

A. Availability for Review 9 

All Financial Disclosure Statements filed pursuant to this Practice shall be maintained by the Executive 10 

Director, and shall be made available for public inspection upon request during normal office hours for 11 

examination and copying by the public, subject, however, to such reasonable fees as the Executive Director 12 

may establish. (Note to Draft Reviewer: This paragraph has been moved from its prior placement within the 13 

existing Availability and Filing of Forms section.)  14 

 15 

Individuals wishing to examine or copy a statement must appear in person at the Executive Office Building 16 

and register their names and home address, and the names of the persons whose statements they wish to 17 

examine or copy. 18 

 19 

A Commissioner or M-NCPPC employee who has a statement on file is entitled, upon request, to be notified 20 

of the name and home address of anyone inspecting his/her Financial Disclosure Statement. 21 

 22 

The Executive Director and Department Head shall maintain a list of the name and home and business 23 

addresses of all persons examining or copying such statements, as well as the name of the person whose 24 

statement was examined. (Note to Draft Reviewer: This paragraph has been moved from its prior placement 25 

within the Requirements for Filing a Financial Disclosure Statement section.) 26 

 27 

B. Preservation of Records 28 

Any person individual subject to the provisions of this Practice shall obtain and preserve all accounts, bills, 29 

receipts, books, papers, and documents necessary to complete and substantiate any reports, statements, or 30 

records required to be made pursuant to this Practice for three years from the date of the filing of the 31 

disclosure.   32 

 33 

All Financial Disclosure Statements filed pursuant to this Practice shall be maintained by the Executive 34 

Director or for employees required to file under Section II(A)(3), by the respective Department Heads with 35 

whom they have filed. 36 

 37 

The Executive Director and the Department Heads shall maintain records copies of the Financial Disclosures 38 

with him/her for three years, at which time they shall be sent to Archives for permanent retention, pursuant 39 

to the State-Approved Records Retention and Disposition Schedule. (Note to Draft Reviewer: The current 40 

Records Retention and Disposition Schedule does indicate that Financial Disclosure Statements are to be 41 

retained permanently.  However, with upcoming revisions to the Retention Schedule, there is a potential 42 

change in the retention time for statements.  The word “permanent” in this sentence has been deleted to 43 

indicate that, while the agency’s Archives unit will retain statements, and the phrasing is ambiguous enough 44 

117

0123456789



Page 18 of 18 
 

to allow for revisions to the retention time.) 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

AVAILABILITY AND All Financial Disclosure Statements filed pursuant to this Practice shall be 5 

FILING OF FORMS maintained by the Executive Director, and shall be made available during normal office hours 6 

for examination and copying by the public, subject, however, to such reasonable fees as the 7 

Executive Director may establish.  (Note to Draft Reviewer: Paragraph has been incorporated 8 

in the section titled Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records, above.) 9 

 10 

118

0123456789



Attachment C 

 

Analysis of Submitted Departmental Comments on Revisions to  

Administrative Practice 5-70A, Financial Disclosure 

 

Following work sessions with Department Heads, proposed amendments were circulated for broader 

departmental comment.  Policy Office responses are provided below.  Comments did not result in the need for 

significant modifications to the draft Practice, however appropriate steps have been taken as indicated. 

 

General  

 

1. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks: We recommend having the financial disclosure form in a 

digital format for easy access, submission and tracking. Paper copies take up space and are more prone to getting 

lost or landing in the hands of the wrong staff. 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation:   The Policy Office will work with Legal and the Chief Information 

Officer to establish e-filing option for M-NCPPC employees who are required to file Financial Disclosure 

Statements.  

 

I. Requirements for Filing Annual Financial Disclosure Statements 

Subsection B. Designated M-NCPPC Positions 

 

2. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks: We recommend adding Executive Director of Park/Rec 

Foundations. This is different than someone being “assigned to service on a board or foundation” and as such, this 

person should submit his/her [Financial Disclosure Statement] to the ED. 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation: Pursuant to the State Ethics Law, the M-NCPPC can only require its 

own employees to file annual financial disclosure statements.  Unless the executive director(s) of such 

foundations are M-NCPPC employees, the M-NCPPC lacks sufficient authority to require such disclosure.  The 

amended Practice addresses the ability to require financial disclosures from our employees who are assigned to 

boards as part of their official duties with the MNCPPC. 

 

I. Requirements for Filing Annual Financial Disclosure Statements 

Subsection B. Designated M-NCPPC Positions 

 

3. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks: Clarify that the financial disclosures that aren’t required to 

be sent to the ED are kept with the Departments 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation:  

The existing policy already explains disclosures are maintained by Department Heads.  Please see below: 

 

Section V(B), Preservation of Records: 

All Financial Disclosure Statements filed pursuant to this Practice shall be maintained by the Executive 

Director or for employees required to file under Section II(A)(3), by the respective Department Heads with 

whom they have filed. 

 

119

0123456789



 

I. Requirements for Filing Annual Financial Disclosure Statements 

Subsection D. Required Filings for New Hires/Appointees, for Individuals Serving in Acting Positions, and Upon 

Termination 

 

4. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks: We recommend that [communicating and monitoring filings 

at the time of hire/when acting/at termination] be done during Commission orientation and filed/monitored at CAS. 

For those positions that are required to complete an FDS, this requirement should be included in the job 

advertisement. 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation:  

Financial disclosures must be maintained by the department head who designates the positions which must file.  

Therefore, the appropriate office to administer this requirement is hiring department.   Departments track 

employment decisions, ensure departmental on-boarding and the issuance of information technology, and 

conduct exit-interviews.   The Department Heads agreed with this approach. 

 

The hiring department should ensure that the filing requirement is placed in the job advertisement.  This can be 

coordinated with the Recruitment and Selection Office.  Language has been added to the Practice to explain this 

approach. 

 

II.  Ongoing Obligations to Disclose Conflicts of Interest 

Subsection C. All Other Employees Required to File Disclosures 

 

5. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks:   Need clarification. Does this put the onus on all employees 

to advise the dept. head whether a conflict of interest has/may occur? 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation: The requirement pertains to employees who must file financial 

disclosures, as they have responsibilities where conflicts must be disclosed.   

 

 Other Agency policies cover general obligations all employees have regarding reporting known or suspected 

conflicts of interest.  See, for example, Practice 3-31, Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Practice 2-14, Non-

Commission Employment and Non-Commission Business. 

 

III.  Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records 

Subsection A. Availability for Review 

 

6. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks: Home and business address or just home address?  Page 13, 

line 42 just specifies home address. 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation: The comment pertains to the following text: 

The Executive Director and Department Head shall maintain a list of the name and home and business 

addresses of all persons examining or copying such statements, as well as the name of the person whose 

statement was examined. 

Pursuant to Maryland Code, General Provisions Article, § 5-827(b)(1), any person examining or copying a 

financial disclosure statement shall provide their home address alone, not their business address.  The draft has 

120

0123456789



been modified to strike the words, “and business [address]”. 

 

III.  Maintenance of Financial Disclosure Records 

Subsection B. Preservation of Records 

 

7. Comment/Question submitted by Montgomery Parks: It would be helpful to specify if these are original hard 

copies or if scanned/digital copies are sufficient. 

 

Policy Staff Response/Recommendation:  Individuals would forward their completed document.  This may be an 

original or a copy (electronic or paper), based on specific requirements which pertains to different filers.  The 

Practice has been amended to state “record” instead of “copies”.  

121

0123456789



122

0123456789



ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 B

ri
ef

in
g 

P
re

se
n

te
d

 B
y:

 R
e

gi
n

al
d

 D
ix

o
n

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

8

ITEM 6f

123

0123456789



Ta
b

le
 o

f 
C

o
nt

en
ts

•
P

ro
je

ct
 S

co
p

e

•
P

ro
je

ct
 S

ta
tu

s

•
Sc

h
ed

u
le

d
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
➢

R
o

u
n

d
-1

 E
n

ga
ge

m
e

n
t 

–
Fi

n
an

ce
, P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t,
 H

R

➢
R

o
u

n
d

-2
 E

n
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
-

D
ep

t.
 S

M
E

➢
R

o
u

n
d

-3
 E

n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

–
In

te
gr

at
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 T
ea

m
  

R
eq

u
ir

em
e

n
ts

 A
n

al
ys

is

•
H

ig
h

-L
ev

el
 R

is
ks

•
Ex

ec
u

ti
ve

 S
p

o
n

so
rs

•
Ex

ec
u

ti
ve

 S
p

o
n

so
r 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

•
N

ex
t 

St
ep

s

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
2

ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e 
P

ro
je

ct

124

0123456789



Pr
o

je
ct

 S
co

p
e

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ER
P

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o

r 
M

N
C

P
P

C
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 a
s 

en
d

 o
f 

lif
e 

b
y 

th
e 

p
ro

d
u

ct
 v

en
d

o
r 

an
d

 is
 n

o
 lo

n
ge

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

ed
. T

h
er

ef
o

re
, t

h
e 

p
ri

m
ar

y 
o

b
je

ct
iv

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 is

 t
o

 r
em

o
ve

 t
h

e 
kn

o
w

n
 c

ri
ti

ca
l r

is
k 

o
f 

th
e 

o
p

er
at

in
g 

ER
P

 o
n

 a
n

 u
n

su
p

p
o

rt
ed

 p
la

tf
o

rm
. 

Th
e 

sc
o

p
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 f

o
r 

M
N

C
P

P
C

 is
: 

•
U

p
gr

ad
e 

th
e 

La
w

so
n

 9
.x

 E
R

P
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

o
f 

it
s 

m
o

d
u

le
s 

to
 In

fo
r 

V
1

0

•
Th

is
 w

ill
 in

cl
u

d
e 

th
e 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

ew
 m

o
d

u
le

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

ei
th

er
 

n
o

t 
av

ai
la

b
le

 in
 L

aw
so

n
 9

.x
 o

r 
w

er
e 

n
o

t 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
in

it
ia

l 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

•
R

e-
en

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g 

o
f 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 t

h
at

 a
re

 o
u

td
at

ed
 d

u
e 

to
 c

h
an

ge
s 

in
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
n

ee
d

s 
an

d
 in

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
. 

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
3

ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e 
P

ro
je

ct

125

0123456789



Pr
o

je
ct

 S
ta

tu
s

•
R

FP
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

o
m

p
le

te
; V

en
d

o
r 

(R
P

I)
 s

el
ec

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te

•
W

al
ke

r 
D

ri
ve

 le
as

e 
ag

re
e

m
en

t 
si

gn
at

u
re

 e
xp

e
ct

ed
 b

y 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

1
2

, 2
0

1
7

•
O

n
b

o
ar

d
ed

 t
w

o
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
A

n
al

ys
t 

to
 t

h
e 

P
M

O
 t

ea
m

 in
 

D
ec

em
b

e
r 

2
0

1
7

•
W

o
rk

in
g 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

P
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t 

te
am

 t
o

 e
xe

cu
te

 t
h

e 
re

so
u

rc
e 

b
ac

kf
ill

 p
la

n
➢

In
te

rv
ie

w
s 

w
ill

 b
eg

in
 b

y 
Fe

b
ru

ar
y 

1
, 2

0
1

8

•
R

eq
u

e
st

ed
 d

ep
ar

tm
e

n
t 

su
b

je
ct

 m
at

te
r 

ex
p

e
rt

 (
SM

E)
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

fr
o

m
 a

ll 
fo

u
r 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 f
o

r 
re

q
u

ir
em

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
te

st
in

g

•
M

et
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r 

G
en

er
al

, P
o

lic
y,

 a
n

d
 L

eg
al

 
d

ep
ar

tm
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
eq

u
e

st
 S

M
E 

h
el

p
 t

h
ro

u
gh

o
u

t 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 

lif
ec

yc
le

•
Ta

rg
et

in
g 

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
7

, 2
0

1
8

 f
o

r 
p

ro
je

ct
 k

ic
ko

ff
 m

ee
ti

n
g

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

4

126

0123456789



Sc
h

ed
u

le
d

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

•
R

o
u

n
d

-1
➢

St
an

d
ar

d
iz

e 
te

m
p

la
te

s 
an

d
 t

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 g
at

h
er

in
g

➢
M

ee
t 

w
/ 

fu
n

ct
io

n
al

 S
u

b
je

ct
 M

at
te

r 
Ex

p
er

ts
 (

SM
E)

 f
ro

m
 F

in
an

ce
, 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t,
 a

n
d

 H
R

 f
o

r 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 g
at

h
er

in
g

➢
A

n
al

yz
e 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

➢
Id

en
ti

fy
 p

ro
ce

ss
 g

ap
s 

an
d

 p
ai

n
 p

o
in

ts

•
R

o
u

n
d

-2
➢

M
ee

t 
w

/ 
D

ep
t.

 S
M

E 
fo

r 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
t 

ga
th

er
in

g
➢

R
ev

ie
w

 R
o

u
n

d
-1

 a
n

al
ys

is
 w

/ 
D

ep
t.

 S
M

Es
➢

V
al

id
at

e 
an

d
 id

en
ti

fy
 p

ro
ce

ss
 g

ap
s 

an
d

 p
ai

n
 p

o
in

ts

•
R

o
u

n
d

-3
➢

In
te

gr
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 t

ea
m

 p
er

fo
rm

s 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

an
al

ys
is

➢
D

ev
el

o
p

 “
as

-i
s”

 p
ro

ce
ss

 m
o

d
el

➢
H

o
st

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 v

al
id

at
io

n
 m

ee
ti

n
g 

w
it

h
 a

ll 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s

➢
D

ev
el

o
p

 “
to

-b
e”

 p
ro

ce
ss

 m
o

d
el

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

5

127

0123456789



Pr
o

je
ct

 R
is

ks

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
6

R
is

k
s

 /
 I

s
s

u
e

s
Im

p
a

c
t

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
P

ro
b

a
b

il
it

y
A

c
ti

o
n

 N
e
e

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

R
is

k
 –

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
(te

nu
re

 
&

 s
ki

lls
et

) m
ay

 p
re

se
nt

 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 to
 a

cc
ep

tin
g 

ne
w

er
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
pr

oc
es

se
s

•
Lo

w
 u

se
r a

do
pt

io
n 

•
C

on
tin

ue
d 

or
 w

or
se

ne
d 

in
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
ar

ou
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

te
ch

ni
ca

l u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
  

•
Fo

rm
al

iz
ed

 a
nd

 p
ee

r t
o 

pe
er

 
tra

in
in

g 
on

 n
ew

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

to
ol

s
•

E
ac

h 
de

pa
rtm

en
t w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
fu

nc
tio

na
l S

M
E

 to
 b

e 
tra

in
ed

H
ig

h

•
C

ha
m

pi
on

de
pa

rtm
en

t l
ev

el
 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

cr
os

s 
tra

in
in

g
•

S
up

po
rt 

ef
fo

rts
 to

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
ze

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

R
is

k
-F

un
ct

io
na

l
re

so
ur

ce
s 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 m
us

t b
e 

ba
ck

fil
le

d 
so

 th
at

 th
ey

 
ca

n 
be

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 to

 th
is

 
ef

fo
rt 

du
rin

g 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
ta

sk
s

•
Th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill
 

la
g 

be
hi

nd
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
da

te
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
is

se
d 

if 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t r

es
ou

rc
e 

ha
s 

to
 

st
op

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 ta

sk
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
an

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

is
su

e
•

Fu
nc

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 w

ill
 

no
t d

ev
el

op
 a

 w
or

ki
ng

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 
to

ol
 o

r a
ny

ne
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

•
D

ev
el

op
 a

 re
so

ur
ce

 p
la

n 
to

 
cr

os
s-

tra
in

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 

he
lp

 w
ith

 b
ac

kf
ill

•
W

or
k 

w
ith

 fu
nc

tio
na

l m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 g
iv

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

to
 b

us
in

es
s 

cy
cl

es
 w

he
n 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ch

ed
ul

in
g 

•
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

of
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 h

el
p 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
op

er
at

io
na

l d
ut

ie
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t l
ife

cy
cl

es

H
ig

h

•
C

ha
m

pi
on

 to
 th

e 
fu

nc
tio

na
l 

m
an

ag
er

s 
th

e 
id

ea
 o

f c
ro

ss
-

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

de
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 
ke

y 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t

R
is

k
 -

D
ec

en
tra

liz
ed

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

na
l s

tru
ct

ur
e

an
d 

cu
ltu

re
 le

ad
s 

to
 

re
si

st
an

ce
 to

 
st

an
da

rd
iz

at
io

n 
of

 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
.

•
In

ef
fic

ie
nt

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 

du
pl

ic
at

iv
e 

ef
fo

rts
•

In
ab

ili
ty

 to
m

ax
im

iz
e 

va
lu

e 
fro

m
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
sy

st
em

s 
e.

g.
 o

ut
-o

f-b
ox

 fe
at

ur
es

, 
re

qu
iri

ng
 w

or
k-

ar
ou

nd
s

•
C

oo
rd

in
at

e
si

m
ila

r f
un

ct
io

na
l 

ar
ea

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

st
an

da
rd

iz
at

io
n 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t

H
ig

h

•
C

ha
m

pi
on

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f p
ro

ce
ss

 
st

an
da

rd
iz

at
io

n 
to

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
Fu

nc
tio

na
l M

an
ag

er
s

ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e 
P

ro
je

ct

128

0123456789



Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 S

p
o

n
so

rs

¥ 
C

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

rt
h

co
m

in
g

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

7

G
w

e
n

 W
ri

g
h

t

M
on

tg
om

er
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

R
o

s
ly

n
 J

o
h

n
s

o
n

P
ri

n
c
e

 G
e

o
rg

e
’s

 D
P

R

P
a

tt
i 
B

a
rn

e
y
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or

A
n

d
re

e
 C

h
e
c
k
le

y

P
ri

n
c
e

 G
e

o
rg

e
’s

 

P
la

nn
in

g 
 ¥

M
ik

e
 R

il
e

y

M
on

tg
om

er
y 

Pa
rk

s 
¥

B
e
tt

y
 H

e
w

le
tt

, 
C

h
a

ir

C
a
s

e
y
 A

n
d

e
rs

o
n

, 
V

ic
e

 C
h

a
ir

J
o

e
 Z

im
m

e
rm

a
n

Se
cr

et
ar

y 
-T

re
as

ur
er

129

0123456789



Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 S

p
o

n
so

r 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es

¥ 
C

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

rt
h

co
m

in
g

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

8

•
Se

n
d

 o
u

t 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
th

at
 r

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

e
ss

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
ER

P
 

U
p

gr
ad

e
 P

ro
je

ct
.

➢
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 N
ew

sl
et

te
r

➢
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 S
ta

tu
s

•
Sp

ea
k 

at
 e

ve
n

ts
 t

o
 a

d
vo

ca
te

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.
➢

ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 K

ic
ko

ff
➢

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

St
af

f 
M

ee
ti

n
gs

➢
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

ee
ti

n
g

•
B

u
ild

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 a
 h

ea
lt

h
y 

co
al

it
io

n
 o

f 
le

ad
er

s 
w

h
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
th

e 
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

.
➢

W
h

y 
is

 t
h

e 
ER

P
 U

p
gr

ad
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
➢

W
h

y 
n

o
w

?
➢

W
h

at
 h

ap
p

en
s 

if
 w

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

d
o

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
?

➢
W

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
co

n
se

q
u

en
ce

s 
to

 t
h

e 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
o

r 
to

 m
e?

130

0123456789



N
ex

t 
St

ep
s

•
Fi

n
al

iz
e 

p
u

n
ch

 li
st

 f
o

r 
W

al
ke

r 
D

ri
ve

•
Sc

h
ed

u
le

 in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

fo
r 

b
ac

kf
ill

 r
es

o
u

rc
es

•
D

ev
el

o
p

 a
n

d
 p

re
se

n
t 

a 
d

et
ai

le
d

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ch

ed
u

le
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 o
f 

R
o

u
n

d
s 

1
-3

•
Sc

h
ed

u
le

 P
ro

je
ct

 K
ic

ko
ff

 m
ee

ti
n

g 
fo

r 
fi

rs
t 

w
ee

k 
in

 
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
9

ER
P

 U
p

gr
ad

e 
P

ro
je

ct

131

0123456789



132

0123456789



O
fficers' Reports



ITEM 7a

133

0123456789



134

0123456789



ITEM 7b

135

0123456789



136

0123456789



137

0123456789



138

0123456789



139

0123456789



140

0123456789



November 30, 2017 

Office of the General Counsel 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

Reply To 

Adrian R. Gardner 
General Counsel 

6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 200 

Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

(301) 454-1670 ● (301) 454-1674 fax

MEMORANDUM 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

FROM: Adrian R. Gardner 

General Counsel 

RE: Litigation Report for November 2017 

Please find the attached litigation report we have prepared for your meeting scheduled on 

Wednesday, December 20, 2017.  As always, please do not hesitate to call me in advance 

if you would like me to provide a substantive briefing on any of the cases reported.   

Table of Contents – November 2017 Report 

Composition of Pending Litigation ........................................................................... Page 01 

Overview of Pending Litigation (Chart) ................................................................... Page 01 

Litigation Activity Summary .................................................................................... Page 02 

Index of New YTD Cases (FY18)  ........................................................................... Page 03 

Index of Resolved YTD Cases (FY18)  .................................................................... Page 04 

Disposition of FY18 Closed Cases Sorted by Department  ...................................... Page 05 

Index of Reported Cases Sorted by Jurisdiction ....................................................... Page 08 

Litigation Report Ordered by Court Jurisdiction ...................................................... Page 09 

ITEM 7c

141

0123456789



142

0123456789



 
 
Composition of Pending Litigation  Page 1 of 21 

 

November 2017 Composition of Pending Litigation 

(Sorted By Subject Matter and Forum) 
 

 
State Trial 

Court 

Federal 
Trial 
Court 

Maryland 
COSA 

Maryland 
Court of 
Appeals 

Federal 
Appeals 

Court 

U.S. 
Supreme 

Court 

Subject Matter 
Totals 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use 

2   1   3 

Admin Appeal: 
Other 

      0 

Land Use 
Dispute 

    1  1 

Tort Claim 5      5 
Employment 
Dispute 

1 1                 2 
Contract Dispute 3   1   4 
Property Dispute    2   2 
Civil 
Enforcement 

      0 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

1      1 

Debt Collection       0 
Bankruptcy       0 
Miscellaneous 2    1  3 
Per Forum Totals 14 1 0 4 2 0 21 

 
 
 

 
 

 

LAND USE
29%

EMPLOYMENT
9%

TORT CLAIMS
24%

WORKERS' 
COMPENSATION

5%

OTHER
33%

OVERVIEW OF PENDING LITIGATION

By Major Case Categories

143

0123456789



 
 
  
  
 Page 2 of 21 

November 2017 Litigation Activity Summary 

 
 COUNT FOR MONTH COUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 

Pending 
In  Oct  
2017  

New 
Cases 

Resolved 
Cases 

Pending 
Prior 
F/Y 

New 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Resolved 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Pending 
Current 
Month 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use (AALU) 

4  1 4  1 3 

Admin Appeal: 
Other (AAO) 

0   0   0 

Land Use 
Disputes (LD) 

0 1  1 1 1 1 

 
Tort Claims (T) 

8  3 6 3 4 5 

Employment 
Disputes (ED) 

2   1 1  2 

Contract Disputes 
(CD) 

4 1 1 2 3 1 4 

Property Disputes 
(PD) 

2   1 2*  2 

Civil Enforcement 
(CE) 

0   0   0 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

(WC) 
1   2 1 2 1 

Debt Collection 
(D) 

0   0   0 

 
Bankruptcy (B) 

0   0   0 

 
Miscellaneous (M) 

4  1 5  2 3 

 
Totals 

25 2 6 22         11 11 21 

 
 
 
 

*Please note that the Property Dispute calculation for October was inadvertently left out the 

Rounds Case (see Page 21) which was included but not counted in the October Litigation Report 

nor reported on the Index of YTD New Cases (See Page 3). 

 

 

 

 

 

144

0123456789



 
  
  
 Page 3 of 21 
 

 

 

INDEX OF YTD NEW CASES 

(7/1/2017 TO 6/30/18) 

 

 

A.  New Trial Court Cases.   Unit  Subject Matter  Month  
       
Moore v. Thompson, et al    PG  Tort   July 17  
Evans v. Commission    MC  Tort   Aug 17 
Gregg v. Commission    PG  ED   Sept 17 
Commission v. McCoy    PG  CD   Oct 17 
Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical, Inc., et al MC  CD   Oct 17 
Commission v. Carillo-Cruz   MC  WC   Oct 17 
Bundu v. Bowman    PG  Tort   Oct 17 
 
 
B.  New Appellate Court Cases.  Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
 
Rounds v. Commission     MC  PD   Sept 17  
Rounds v. Commission    MC  PD   Oct 17 
Fort Myers Construction Corp v. Commission  MC  CD   Nov 17 
Pulte Home Corp. v. Montgomery County, et al MC  LD   Nov 17 
 

  

145

0123456789



 
  
  
 Page 4 of 21 
 

INDEX OF YTD RESOLVED CASES 

(7/1/2017 TO 6/30/18) 

  
C.  Trial Court Cases Resolved.                        Unit                  Subject Matter   Month 
 
 
Parker v. Commission    PG  WCC   July 2017 
Commission v. Pollard    MC  WCC   Sept 2017 
Pulte Home Corp., et al v. Mont. County, et al MC  LD   Sept 2017 
Green v. Commission    PG  Tort   Oct 2017 
Swain v. Seay, et al    PG  Misc   Oct 2017 
Shipe v. Louketis, et al    MC  Tort   Nov 2017 
Tugwell v. Louketis, et al    MC  Tort   Nov 2017 
Fort Myer Construction Corp v. Commission  MC  CD   Nov 2017 
Rounds v. Commission, et al   MC  Tort   Nov 2017 
   
 
 
D.  Appellate Court Cases Resolved. 
 
Cohhn v. Commission    MC  Misc   Nov 2017 
Friends of Croom Civic Assoc., et al v. Commission PG  AALU   Nov 2017 
  
 
 
  

146

0123456789



 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 5

 o
f 2

1
 

 

D
is

p
o

s
it

io
n

 o
f 

F
Y

1
8
 C

lo
s

e
d

 C
a

s
e
s

 S
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

C
L

IE
N

T
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L
 C

A
U

S
E

 O
F

 A
C

T
IO

N
 I
N

 D
IS

P
U

T
E

 
D

IS
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

 
 

 
 

 

F
in

a
n

c
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 &

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

 

 
 

 
M

o
n

tg
o

m
e
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  

 
 

R
ou

nd
s 

v.
 C

om
m

is
si

on
, e

t a
l 

D
ef

en
se

 o
f c

la
im

 fo
r a

lle
ge

d 
sl

an
de

r o
f t

itl
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
Fa

rm
 R

oa
d 

ea
se

m
en

t. 
 

08
/2

5/
17

- C
ou

rt 
gr

an
ts

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 M
o
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

D
is

m
is

s 
 

 
 

 
M

o
n

tg
o

m
e
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
P

a
rk

s
  

 
 

C
oh

hn
 v

. C
om

m
is

si
on

 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 a

pp
ea

le
d 

C
irc

ui
t C

ou
rt 

ru
lin

g 
gr

an
tin

g 
th

e 
ju

dg
m

en
t i

n 
fa

vo
r o

f t
he

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 d
en

yi
ng

 
P

la
in

ti
ff

’s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 
to

 r
es

tra
in

 C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 A

rc
he

ry
 

M
an

ag
ed

 D
ee

r H
un

tin
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 in
 M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y.
 

10
/1

8/
17

- C
ou

rt 
af

fir
m

s 
de

ci
si

on
 o

f l
ow

er
 c

ou
rt 

th
at

 
gr

an
te

d 
su

m
m

ar
y 

ju
dg

m
en

t i
n 

fa
v
o
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

of
 b

ow
 h

un
tin

g 
on

 
its

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 

Fo
rt 

M
ye

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
v.

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 fi

le
d 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 fo

r a
lle

ge
d 

de
la

ys
 a

nd
 

da
m

ag
es

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

er
ec

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
te

el
 

gi
rd

er
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 b
rid

ge
 in

 M
on

tg
om

er
y 

C
ou

nt
y 

10
/1

0/
17

- C
ou

rt 
gr

an
ts

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
’ 
M

o
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

D
is

m
is

s,
 c

as
e 

di
sm

is
se

d 
w

ith
 

pr
ej

ud
ic

e 
 

 
 

M
o

n
tg

o
m

e
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

a
rk

 P
o

li
c

e
  

  

 
 

Sh
ip

e 
v.

 L
ou

ke
tis

, e
t a

l 
D

ef
en

se
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

 f
or

 a
ss

au
lt 

&
 b

at
te

ry
, 

in
te

nt
io

na
l 

in
fli

ct
io

n 
of

 e
m

ot
io

na
l d

is
tre

ss
, n

eg
lig

en
ce

, n
eg

lig
en

t 
hi

rin
g.

 

10
/0

6/
17

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 d

is
m

is
sa

l i
n 

en
tir

et
y 

w
ith

 p
re

ju
di

ce
 

Tu
gw

el
l v

. L
ou

ke
tis

, e
t a

l 
D

ef
en

se
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

 f
or

 a
ss

au
lt 

&
 b

at
te

ry
, 

in
te

nt
io

na
l 

in
fli

ct
io

n 
of

 e
m

ot
io

na
l d

is
tre

ss
, n

eg
lig

en
ce

, n
eg

lig
en

t 
hi

rin
g.

 

10
/0

6/
17

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 d

is
m

is
sa

l i
n 

en
tir

et
y 

w
ith

 p
re

ju
di

ce
 

147

0123456789



 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 6

 o
f 2

1
 

 

M
o

n
tg

o
m

e
ry

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 
 

 
 

Pu
lte

 H
om

e 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n,
 e

t a
l v

. M
on

tg
om

er
y 

C
ou

nt
y,

 
et

 a
l 

 

Pl
ai

nt
iff

 fi
le

d 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 fo
r a

lle
ge

d 
de

la
ys

 a
nd

  
da

m
ag

es
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
C

la
rk

sb
ur

g,
 M

ar
yl

an
d.

  
 

08
/2

5/
17

- C
ou

rt 
gr

an
ts

 
D

e
fe

n
d
a
n

ts
’ 
M

o
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

Ju
dg

m
en

t o
n 

Pl
ea

di
ng

s;
 c

as
e 

di
sm

is
se

d 

 
 

 
P

ri
n

c
e
 G

e
o

rg
e
’s

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 
R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 
 

 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 v
. P

ol
la

rd
  

Em
pl

oy
er

 is
 s

ee
ki

ng
 d

e 
no

vo
 ju

di
ci

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
W

C
C

’s
 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
C

la
im

a
n
t 

h
a
d
 
s
u
ff

e
re

d
 
a
 

39
%

 w
or

se
ni

ng
 o

f 
co

nd
iti

on
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 h
is

 r
ig

ht
 h

ip
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 p

er
m

an
en

cy
 a

w
ar

d 
an

d 
fo

un
d 

no
 

ca
us

e 
fo

r a
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t t
o 

pr
ee

xi
st

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
  

07
/2

8/
17

- J
oi

nt
 M

ot
io

n 
to

 
R

em
an

d 
to

 W
C

C
 

G
re

en
, e

t a
l v

. C
om

m
is

si
on

 
D

ef
en

se
 o

f c
la

im
 fo

r p
er

so
na

l i
nj

ur
y 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
fa

ll 
by

 
m

in
or

 c
hi

ld
 fr

om
 p

la
yg

ro
un

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

t P
ep

pe
rm

ill 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

en
te

r. 

08
/3

0/
17

-C
as

e 
di

sm
is

se
d 

w
ith

 
pr

ej
ud

ic
e 

Pa
rk

er
 v

. C
om

m
is

si
on

 
C

la
im

an
t/e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
is

 
se

ek
in

g 
de

 
no

vo
 

ju
di

ci
al

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 W

C
C

’s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 d
en

yi
ng

 s
he

 h
as

 a
n 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l d

is
ea

se
. 

6/
26

/1
7-

C
as

e 
se

ttl
ed

 a
nd

 
re

m
an

de
d 

to
 W

C
C

 

S
w

ai
n 

v.
 S

ea
y,

 e
t a

l 
Pl

ai
nt

iff
 fi

le
s 

to
 f

o
re

c
lo

s
e

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
tt

o
rn

e
y
’s

 l
ie

n
 

on
 p

ro
pe

rty
 w

ith
 a

 H
is

to
ric

 A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 D

ee
d 

of
 E

as
em

en
t. 

09
/0

1/
17

-C
as

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
ily

 
di

sm
is

se
d 

P
ri

n
c

e
 G

e
o

rg
e
’s

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ri

n
c

e
 G

e
o

rg
e
’s

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 

 
 

Fr
ie

nd
s 

of
 C

ro
om

 C
iv

ic
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 e

t a
l v

. 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

D
ef

en
se

 a
ga

in
st

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
A

pp
ea

l o
f d

ec
is

io
n 

by
 th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n 

4-
1
1
0

0
4
 i
n
 S

te
p

h
e

n
’s

 C
ro

s
s
in

g
 a

t 
B

ra
n
d

y
w

in
e
. 

05
/0

8/
17

-C
ou

rt 
af

fir
m

ed
 

ju
dg

m
en

t o
f C

irc
ui

t C
ou

rt 
fo

r 
P

ri
n
c
e
 G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 C
o

u
n
ty

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
 

 
 

  P
ri

n
c

e
 G

e
o

rg
e
’s

 P
a

rk
 P

o
li

c
e

 

 
 

 
 

 

148

0123456789



 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 7

 o
f 2

1
 

 

 
 

 
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

149

0123456789



 
         Page 8 of 21 

INDEX OF CASES 
 
DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ................................................... 09 

Commission v. McCoy. ............................................................................................................................... 09 

Milam v. Doe, et al. ..................................................................................................................................... 09 

Moore v. Thompson, et al ........................................................................................................................... 09 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..................................................... 11 

Bundu v. Bowman. ...................................................................................................................................... 11 

Burnette v.Commission. .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Commission v. The Town of Forest Heights ............................................................................................... 11 
Grier, et al v. Commission ........................................................................................................................... 12 
O’Brien v. Sports & Learning Complex. ...................................................................................................... 12 
Pletsch, et al v. Commission ....................................................................................................................... 13 
Price, et al v. Prince George’s County, et al ............................................................................................... 13 

Sauer, Inc. v. Commission .......................................................................................................................... 14 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 15 

Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical  Inc., et al ......................................................................................... 15 
Commission v. Carillo-Cruz ......................................................................................................................... 15 
Evans v. Commission .................................................................................................................................. 16 

MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS ......................................................................................... 17 

Brooks v. Commission ................................................................................................................................ 17 
Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission  .................................................................................. 17 
Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al .................................................................................................. 17 
Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al .................................................................................................. 18 
MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS .......................................................................................................... 18 

U.S. DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND ............................................................... 19 

Gregg v. Commission .................................................................................................................................. 19 
U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT ....................................................................... 20 

 American Humanists Association, et al v. Commission ............................................................................. 20  
 Pulte Home Corporation v. Montgomery County, et al .............................................................................. 20  
  

150

0123456789



 
         Page 9 of 21 

 
 

DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
 

Commission v. McCoy 
Case #0502-0025950-2017 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Complaint for property damage to Commission’s golf cart. 
  
Status:   Case stayed. 
 
Docket: 

08/31/17 Complaint filed 
11/17/17 Case stayed pending settlement negotiations 

 
 
 

Milam v. Doe and Commission 
Case No. 0502-0034226-2016(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving vehicle owned by Commission.  
  
Status:    Pending trial. 
 
Docket: 

12/27/16 Complaint filed 
02/03/17 Subpoena served on Commission 
03/22/17 Court issues notice of service on Commission 
05/01/17 Commission requests re-issue for dormant service 
05/19/17 Motion to Quash Service filed by Commission 
06/05/17 Notice of Service stricken 
09/28/17 Amended Complaint filed 
12/04/17 Trial date 

 
 
 
 
 

Moore v. Thompson, et al 
Case No. 0502-0026594-2016(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for property damage involving vehicle owned by Commission.  
  

151

0123456789



 
         Page 10 of 21 

Status:    Complaint dismissed. 
 
Docket: 

09/30/16 Complaint filed 
07/12/17 Summons served on Defendant Devillars 
10/26/17 Case dismissed under Rule 3-506 

 
 

 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

152

0123456789



 
         Page 11 of 21 

 
 CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 
Bundu v. Bowman 
CAL17-28259 (Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving motor vehicle accident in Prince 

George’s County.  
  
Status:    Complaint filed. 
 
Docket: 

10/12/17 Complaint filed 
11/02/17 Service of complaint on Commission 

 
 

Burnette v. Commission 
CAL16-35180 (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Former park police officer seeks judicial review of termination. 
  
Status:   Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket: 

09/08/16 Petition filed 
09/23/16 Response to Petition filed by Commission 
02/07/17 Pre-trial conference 
03/24/17 Commission Memorandum of Law filed 
10/30/17 Oral Argument held 

 
 

Commission, et al v. The Town of Forest Heights 
CAL 16-29110 (M) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission filed a declaratory judgment action against the Town of Forest 

Heights.   
 
Status:   Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket: 

07/20/16 Complaint filed 
08/31/16 Defendant filed Answer 
09/20/16 Court returns Defendant’s Answer failure to pay filing fees 
09/27/16 Defendant files Answer 

153

0123456789



 
         Page 12 of 21 

02/08/17 Pretrial conference 
04/10/17 Defendant files Motion to Dismiss and/or Motion for Summary 

Judgment 
04/19/17 Joint Response by Plaintiffs to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss 

and/or for Summary Judgment 
06/21/17 Motions hearing; awaiting decision from Court 

 
 
 

Grier, et al v. Commission 
CAL17-10296 (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Johnson  
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
 
Abstract: Defense against Administrative Appeal of decision by the Planning Board to 

approve Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-16032 in Laurelind-orinan Estate.  
 
Status:   Pending disposition hearing. 
 
Docket: 

04/20/17 Petitioners’ filed a Petition for Judicial Review 

05/09/17 Commission filed Response to Petition 
07/14/17 Status hearing conference 
08/04/17 Petitioner filed Memorandum in Support of Judicial Review 
09/13/17 Oral Argument held 
10/27/17 Disposition hearing 

 
 

O’Brien v. Sports & Learning Complex 
CAL17-00241(Tort) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Harvin 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury involving slip and fall at swimming pool.  
  
Status:    Pending trial. 
 
Docket: 

01/11/17 Complaint filed 
03/03/17 Service of complaint on Commission 
03/31/17 Amended Complaint filed 
08/09/17 Pre-trial conference 
04/10/18 Trial  

 
 
 
 
 

154

0123456789



 
         Page 13 of 21 

Pletsch, et al v. Commission 
CAL17-12150(AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Mills  
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
 
Abstract: Defense against Administrative Appeal of decision by the Planning Board to 

approve Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-16006 Melford Village.  
 
Status:   Pending Argument. 
 
Docket: 

05/10/17 Petitioners’ filed Petition for Judicial Review 

06/09/17 Commission filed Response to Petition 
01/19/18 Oral Argument 

 
 

Price, et al v. Prince George’s County, et al 
CAE16-37806 (M) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner 
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiffs file lawsuit for injunctive relief questioning validity of certain personal tax 

enactments involving the Commission and Prince George’s County. 
 
Status:   Pending trial. 
Docket: 

09/30/16 Complaint filed 
01/03/17 Motion to Dismiss or in the alternative, Motion for Summary 

Judgment filed by Defendant, P. G. County 
01/06/17 Status Conference 
01/31/17 Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant, PG County’s Motion to 

Dismiss 
03/08/17 Defendant, PG County files answer to Complaint 
04/24/17 Amended Complaint filed 
05/03/17 Commission served with amended complaint 
05/24/17 Commission files entry of appearance 
06/13/17 Commission files Motion to Dismiss 
06/30/17 Pretrial conference 
07/07/17 Plaintiff’s Opposition to Commission’s Motion to Dismiss or in 

the alternative, Motion for Summary Judgment 
09/19/17 Motions hearing; Motion to Dismiss denied by Court 
10/02/17 Motion to Amend Judgment filed by County and County 

Council 
10/16/17 Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Amend Judgment filed 
10/23/17 Order of Court denying County and County Council’s Motion to 

Amend Judgment 
12/13/17 Trial 

155

0123456789



 
         Page 14 of 21 

 
 

Sauer, Inc. v. Commission 
CAL17-05868 (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Adams 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged delays and damages associated with the 

renovation and expansion of the Palmer Park Community Center in Prince 
George’s County.      

 
 
 
Status:   Complaint filed. 
Docket: 

02/28/17 Complaint filed but improperly served; awaiting proper re-
service 

06/20/17 Complaint properly served and accepted by Commission 
08/21/17 Line filed extending responsive pleadings deadline 
09/29/17 Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed 
11/03/17 Line filed extending Plaintiff’s deadline to respond to Motion to 

Dismiss until November 22, 2017 
11/17/17 Plaintiff files Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

156

0123456789



 
         Page 15 of 21 

 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 
 
 

Commission v. Clean Air Mechanical Inc., et al 
Case No. 438017-V (CD) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Adams  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission files complaint for breach of contract, fraud and misrepresentation 

arising out of purchase order for installation of three DDU units at Cabin John 
and Wheaton Ice rinks. 

  
Status:    Complaint filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/26/17 Complaint filed 
07/12/18 Pretrial and settlement conference 

 
 
 
 
 

Commission v. Carillo-Cruz 
Case No. 439249-V (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Commission files petition for de novo review based on WCC’s ruling that a 

compensable accident occurred on the grounds that driving a vehicle carries an 
increased risk of injury, without making a ruling on whether Claimant suffered an 
idiopathic condition. 

  
Status:    Petition filed. 
 
Docket: 

10/24/17 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
11/03/17 Defendant’s Response to Petition to Judicial Review 
04/05/18 Status/Pretrial Conference 

 
 
 
 
  

157

0123456789



 
         Page 16 of 21 

 
Evans v. Commission, et al 

Case No. 435465-V(Tort) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Harvin  
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim for personal injury following an automobile accident.  
  
Status:    Complaint filed. 
 
Docket: 

08/11/17 Complaint filed 
08/22/17 Service of complaint on Commission 
09/19/17 Commission files Answer to Complaint 
11/09/17 Plaintiff files Motion for Default against Defendant, Melara 
11/28/17 Defendant Melara files Answer to Complaint 
05/24/18 Pre-trial/settlement conference 

 
 

 
 
 
  

158

0123456789



 
         Page 17 of 21 

 
MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS 

 
 

Brooks v. Commisison 
September Term 2016, No. 02295 (AALU) 

(Originally filed under CAE16-25941 in Prince George’s County)  
 

Lead Counsel:  Mills   
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
Abstract: Plaintiff appealed Planning Board ruling granting the departure from design 

standards in Prince George’s County. 
 
  
Status:   Awaiting oral argument. 
 
Docket: 

01/06/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
06/30/17 Appellant’s Brief and Joint Record Extract filed 
12/2017 Oral Argument 

 
 
 

Fort Myer Construction Corporation v. Commission 
September Term, No. 1684 (CD) 

(Originally filed under 399804-V in Montgomery County) 
 
Lead Counsel:  MarcusBonsib, LLC  (Bruce L. Marcus)  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff appealed Circuit Court ruling granting dismissal of complaint for alleged 

delays and damages associated with the erection of a steel girder pedestrian 
bridge in Montgomery County. 

    
 
Status:    Appeal noted. 
Docket: 

10/26/17 Notice of Appeal 
 
 
 
 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al 
September Term, 2016, No. 02501(PD) 

(Originally filed under #350954-V in Montgomery County) 
  

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
   Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Appeal from dismissal of claim for violations of the Maryland Constitution and 

declaratory relief concerning alleged Farm Road easement. 
   

159

0123456789



 
         Page 18 of 21 

Status:   Awaiting argument. 
 
Docket: 

02/03/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
01/09/18 Oral Argument  

 
 
 

Rounds v. Montgomery County, MD, et al 
September Term, 2017, No.1561 (PD) 

(Originally filed under #350954-V in Montgomery County) 
  

 
Lead Counsel:  Gardner  
Other Counsel:  Dickerson 
   Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Appeal from dismissal of claim barred by res judicata concerning alleged Farm 

Road easement. 
   
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/17 Notice of Appeal filed 
10/19/17 Court issued show cause for inquiry as to why Pre-hearing 

Information Report not filed  
11/15/17 Court accepts Pre-hearing Information Report for filing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS 
 

No Pending Cases 
 

  

160

0123456789



 
         Page 19 of 21 

U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND 
 
 
 

Gregg v. Commission 
Case No. 8:17-cv-02111 (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Harvin 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed complaint for alleged race and gender discrimination.    
 
Status:   Case dismissed. 
 
Docket: 

07/28/17 Complaint filed 
09/28/17 Commission files request to Extend Time to Respond to 

Complaint 
10/04/17 Court extends Commission’s response time until after 

mediation is completed 
11/01/17 Mediation hearing scheduled 
11/06/17 Case settled and dismissed. 

  

161

0123456789



 
         Page 20 of 21 

  
 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT 
 
 

American Humanist Association, et al v. Commission 
No. 15-2597 Case #8:14-cv550-DKC (M) 

 
Lead Counsel:    Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Gardner 
   Adams 
 
Abstract:  Defense of claim alleging violation of establishment clause of Constitution.   
 
Status:   Reversed and remanded. 
 
Docket:   

 

12/30/15 Notice of Appeal filed  
02/29/16 Appellant’s brief filed 
04/04/16 Response brief by Appellees filed 
03/07/16 Brief Amici Curiae filed by Freedom from Religion Foundation 

and Center for Inquiry in Support of Appellants 
04/11/16 Brief Amici Curiae of The Becket Fund for Religious Liberty in 

Support of Appellees 
04/11/16 Brief Amici Curiae Senator Joe Machin and Representatives 

Doug Collins, Vicky Hartzler, Jody Hice, Evan Jenkins, Jim 
Jordan, Mark Meadows and Alex Mooney in Support of 
Appellees 

04/11/16 Brief Amici Curiae State of West Virginia and 24 Other States 
supporting Appellees 

04/18/16 Appellant’s Reply brief filed 
12/07/16 Oral Argument held 
10/18/17 Court reverses and remands case back to the U. S. District 

Court of Maryland holding that the display and maintenance of 
the cross violates the Establishment Clause. 

11/01/17 Commission filed Petition for Hearing En Banc 
11/01/17 American Legion filed Petition for Hearing En Banc 
11/09/17 Court directed Plaintiffs file responses to Petitions for Hearing 

En Banc 
11/20/17 Plaintiffs file their Response to Petitions for Hearing En Banc 

 
 
 

Pulte Home Corporation, et al v. Montgomery County, et al 
Case No. 17-2112 (LD) 

 (Originally filed under Case No 8:14-cv-03955) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Outside Counsel-Whiteford Taylor and Preston 
Other Counsel:  Gardner/Dickerson/Adams 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff filed appeal following dismissal of complaint in U. S. District Court for 

alleged delays and damages associated with the construction of a residential 
development in Clarksburg, Maryland.  

162

0123456789



 
         Page 21 of 21 

 
Status:   Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/17 Notice of Removal and Complaint filed 
10/10/17 Court files Briefing Order 
11/20/17 Brief filed by Appellant Pulte Home Corporation 
12/19/17 Response Brief due 

 

163

0123456789



Com
m

ittee M
inutes/

Board Report


	Blank Page



